
MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY/ 
TIRZ#2  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
JUNE 30, 2022 

Page 1



DM-#8258264.6 

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
and 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 
(ALSO KNOWN AS THE MIDTOWN REINVESTMENT ZONE) 

TO: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND THE MIDTOWN REINVESTMENT ZONE AND TO ALL OTHER INTERESTED 
PERSONS: 

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Midtown Redevelopment Authority (the 
“Authority”) will hold a joint regular meeting, open to the public, with the Board of Directors of the 
Midtown Reinvestment Zone on Thursday, June 30, 2022, at 12:30 P.M. at 410 Pierce Street, 1st 
Floor Conference Room (enter at the Pierce St. and Brazos St. door) Houston, Texas 
77002.   The meeting location will be open to the public during open portions of the meeting. The 
public will be permitted to offer comments as provided on the agenda and as permitted by the 
presiding officer during the meeting. 

The Board of Directors of each of the Authority and the Midtown Reinvestment Zone will (i) consider, 
present and discuss orders, resolutions or motions; (ii) adopt, approve and ratify such orders, 
resolutions or motions; and (iii) take other actions as may be necessary, convenient or desirable, 
with respect to the following matters: 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Introduction of Guests.

2. Public Comment.

3. Consent Agenda for the Midtown Reinvestment Zone:
a. Minutes for May 26 and June 2, 2022.

4. Consent Agenda for the Authority:
a. Minutes for May 26 and June 2, 2022;
b. Monthly financial reports for May 2022;
c. Invoices from Trustee and Operating Accounts for June 2022;
d. Annual renewal of Professional Services Agreement with Walter P Moore
e. Construction Agreement with Jerdon Enterprise for Midtown Park Front 90 and Garage

Improvements

5. Grant Agreement between Houston Endowment Inc. and the Midtown Redevelopment
Authority for the Midtown Cultural Art & Entertainment District to receive Two Hundred Fifty

Page 2



DM-#8258264.6 

Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) for support to build capacity and codevelop the Houston 
Cultural District’s Plan. 

6. Midtown Affordable Housing Program

a. Affordable Housing Operations Campus;
i. Change Orders
ii. Office Lease with Third Ward Community Fund Management Corporation

b. Parking Garage Operations Budget;
c. Ratification of executed contracts for sale of the following properties:

i. 4518 Griggs Road, Houston, TX 77021; and
ii. 2801 Alabama Street, Houston, TX 77004;

d. Affordable Housing Report

7. Midtown Capital Improvements Program:

a. Baldwin Park - Walter P Moore / Design Workshop
i. Change Orders
ii. Construction Management and Inspection Additional Services Request – Middleton

Brown
b. Caroline Street Reconstruction – ESPA Corp/KCI

i. Change Orders
c. Midtown Park – Walter P Moore / Design Workshop

i. Front 90 and Garage Improvements - Work Order for Construction Materials Testing
Services

d. North Houston Highway Improvement Project (NHHIP) - Caroline/Wheeler Deck Park
i. Conceptual Design Work Order – OJB Landscape Architecture

e. Wheeler Street Corridor – FTA Grant
i.  Grant Management Work Order – The Goodman Corporation

8. Review of certain Administrative and Personnel Procedures, Policies and Budgets.

9. With respect to the foregoing agenda items, the Authority may conduct an executive session
with regards to the following, as appropriate and necessary:

a. Consultation with attorney (Section 551.071, Texas Government Code);
b. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property (Section 551.072, Texas

Government Code);
c. Personnel matters (Section 551.074, Texas Government Code);
d. Security personnel or devices (Section 551.076, Texas Government Code); and
e. Economic development negotiations (Sections 551.087, Texas Government Code).

Upon entering into the executive session, the presiding officer shall announce which agenda 
items will be discussed. 

10. Adjourn.

_________________________________ 

Executive Director MT/ks 

Page 3



CONSENT AGENDA 

Page 4



DM-#8258272.2 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 

May 26, 2022 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Midtown Redevelopment 
Authority (the “Authority”) was held in person at 410 Pierce Street, First Floor Conference Room, 
Houston, Texas 77002, on Thursday, May 26, 2022, at 12:30 p.m.  The meeting was open to the 
public.  The roll was called of the duly appointed members of the Board, to-wit: 

Pos. # Name Pos. # Name 

1 Camille Foster 6 Abe Goren 
2 Donald Bond 7 Caton M. Fenz 
3 Vacant 8 John Thomas 
4 Michael Murphy 9 Zoe Middleton 
5 Al Odom 

and all the above were present except Director Goren, Fenz and Thomas. 

In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, 
David Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, 
Sally Adame, Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and Cynthia Alvarado; Peggy 
Foreman of Burney & Foreman; Barron F. Wallace of Bracewell LLP; Algenita Davis and Linda 
Larry Mitchell of CCPPI; Jennifer Curley of the City of Houston; Theola Petteway of OST/Almeda 
Redevelopment Authority; Alex Ramirez of Design WorkShop; John Ivery of Walter P. Moore; 
Sean Haley, Interim Executive Director of CCPPI; Rachel Ray-Welch of Walter P. Moore,  Roberta 
Burroughs of Roberta Burroughs Associates; Cheryl Lawson of WALIPP, Jessica Ortiz of Carr, 
Riggs & Ingram; Ceady Broussard of Houston Community College;  Bob Bradford, CPA; Becky 
Cass of WinPark and  Gary Hodges of Raba Kistner, Inc.   

CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE MIDTOWN ZONE. 

MINUTES FOR MARCH 31, 2022. 

Matt Thibodeaux, Executive Director, presented the consent agenda to the Board.  

Director Murphy made a motion to approve the consent agenda. The motion was seconded 
by Director Foster and carried by unanimous vote.  

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned. 

__________________________ 
Secretary 

__________________________ 
Date 

Page 5

DRAFT



DM-#8258279.2 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 

June 2, 2022 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Reinvestment Zone Number Two, 
City of Houston, Texas, was held in person at 410 Pierce Street, First Floor Conference Room, 
Houston, Texas 77002, on Thursday, June 2, 2022, at 12:30 p.m.  The meeting was open to the 
public.  The roll was called of the duly appointed members of the Board, to-wit: 

Pos. # Name Pos. # Name 

1 Camille Foster 6 Abe Goren 
2 Donald Bond 7 Caton M. Fenz 
3 Vacant 8 John Thomas 
4 Michael F. Murphy 9 Zoe Middleton 
5 Al Odom 

and all the above were present except Directors Goren and Thomas. 

In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, 
David Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, 
Sally Adame, Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and Cynthia Alvarado; Peggy 
Foreman of Burney & Foreman; Barron F. Wallace and Mary Buzak of Bracewell LLP and Kristin 
Blomquist of Masterson Advisors.   

Chairman Odom called the meeting to order.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

No public comments were given at this meeting.  

Nomination and Election of Secretary and Assistant Secretary of the Board.  

Chairman Odom asked for nominations for Secretary and Assistant Secretary from the Board. 

Director Foster made a motion to nominate and elect Director Fenz as Secretary.  The motion was 
seconded by Director Goren and carried by unanimous vote.  

Director Goren made a motion to nominate and elect Director Foster as Assistant Secretary.  The 
motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

Resolution Approving the Term Sheet for the Purchase of Tax Increment Contract Revenue 
Bonds to Refund Certain Outstanding Obligations of the Midtown Redevelopment 
Authority; Approving the Engagement of a Placement Agent in connection therewith; and 
Approving Matters related thereto. 

Barron Wallace of Bracewell LLP presented the Resolution Approving the Term Sheet for the 
Purchase of Tax Increment Contract Revenue Bonds to Refund Certain Outstanding Obligations of 
the Midtown Redevelopment Authority; Approving the Engagement of a Placement Agent in 
connection therewith; and Approving Matters related thereto. He reported that by approving the 
Resolution, Midtown could lock in the interest rate thus creating savings and Midtown would not 

Page 6

DRAFT



DM-#8258279.2 

need to issue the bonds before October 2022.  Kristin Blomquist of Masterson Advisors presented 
the Term Sheet showing the savings associated with this proposed transaction.  This would be a 
private placement with Regions Bank.  Following all discussion, Director Goren made a motion to 
approve the Resolution Approving the Term Sheet for the Purchase of Tax Increment Contract 
Revenue Bonds to Refund Certain Outstanding Obligations of the Midtown Redevelopment 
Authority; Approving the Engagement of a Placement Agent in connection therewith; and 
Approving Matters related thereto.  The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by 
unanimous vote.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board did not enter a closed executive session. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned. 

_____________________________ 
Caton Fenz, Secretary 

______________________________ 
Date 

Page 7

DRAFT



1 

DM-#8258273.2

   MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

May 26, 2022 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Midtown Redevelopment Authority (the 
“Authority”) was held in person at 410 Pierce Street, First Floor Conference Room, Houston, Texas 77002, 
on Thursday, May 26, 2022, at 12:30 p.m.  The meeting was open to the public.  The roll was called of the 
duly appointed members of the Board, to-wit: 

Pos. # Name Pos. # Name 

1 Camille Foster 6 Abe Goren 
2 Donald Bond 7 Caton M. Fenz 
3 Vacant 8 John Thomas 
4 Michael F. Murphy 9 Zoe Middleton 
5 Al Odom 

and all the above were present except Director Goren, Fenz and Thomas. 

In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, David 
Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, Sally Adame, 
Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and Cynthia Alvarado; Peggy Foreman of Burney & 
Foreman; Barron F. Wallace of Bracewell LLP; Algenita Davis and Linda Larry Mitchell of CCPPI; Jennifer 
Curley of the City of Houston; Theola Petteway of OST/Almeda Redevelopment Authority; Alex Ramirez of 
Design Workshop; John Ivery of Walter P. Moore; Sean Haley, Interim Executive Director of CCPPI; Rachel 
Ray-Welch of Walter P. Moore,  Roberta Burroughs of Roberta Burroughs Associates; Cheryl Lawson of 
WALIPP, Jessica Ortiz of Carr, Riggs & Ingram; Ceady Broussard of Houston Community College;  Bob 
Bradford, CPA; Becky Cass of WinPark and  Gary Hodges of Raba Kistner, Inc.   

Chairman Odom called the meeting to order.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

No public comments were given at this meeting.  

CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE AUTHORITY: 

MINUTES FOR MARCH 31, 2022; 
MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR MARCH & APRIL, 2022;  
INVOICES FROM TRUSTEE AND OPERATING ACCOUNTS FOR APRIL & MAY, 2022; 
RATIFY AHOC OFFICE LEASE WITH CHANGE HAPPENS!; 
AGREEMENTS WITH ONE WORLD STRATEGY GROUP, LLC; 
AGREEMENT WITH A.O. PHILLIPS & ASSOCIATES, LLC. 

Executive Director Matt Thibodeaux presented the consent agenda. Director Foster made a motion to 
approve the consent agenda as presented. The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by 
unanimous vote.  

Page 8

DRAFT



2 

DM-#8258273.2

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE MANUAL AND EMPLOYEE POLICY MANUAL. 

Barron F. Wallace of Bracewell LLP presented the Administrative Procedure Manual and the Employee 
Policy Manual.  He noted the revisions were changes to the harassment and vacation policies.  Director 
Foster made a motion to approve the Administrative Procedure Manual and Employee Policy Manual.  
The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote. 

INVESTMENT POLICY WITH DEALER/BROKER LIST. 

Mr. Wallace presented the Investment Policy with Dealer/Broker List, noting that the only revision to the 
policy was in the Dealer/Broker List, which was updated with current dealer/brokers. Director Foster 
made a motion to approve the Investment Policy with Dealer/Broker List.  The motion was seconded by 
Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

FINANCIAL AND AGREED UPON PROCEDURES ENGAGEMENT LETTER. 

Kandi Schramm, Administrative Manager, presented the Engagement Letters for the 2022 and 2023 
Financial and Agreed Upon Procedures Audits. She noted that the Engagement Letters showed a minimal 
increase over the previous years due to the increase of the projects.  Director Bond made a motion to 
approve the Engagement Letters for the 2022 and 2023 Financial and Agreed Upon Procedures Audits. 
The motion was seconded by Director Middleton and carried by unanimous vote.  

FY21 AGREED UPON PROCEDURES AUDIT. 

Jessica Ortiz of Carr, Riggs and Ingram presented the FY21 Agreed Upon Procedures Audit.  Ms. Ortiz 
reported their engagement to perform the FY21 Agreed Upon Procedures Audit in accordance with the 
attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  She 
additionally noted that no exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures.  Director Murphy 
made a motion to approve the FY21 Agreed Upon Procedures Audit.  The motion was seconded by 
Director Middleton and carried by unanimous vote.  

MIDTOWN AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM 

Affordable Housing Operations Campus; 

Change Orders; 

Marlon Marshall, Director of Engineering and Construction reported there were no Change 
Orders to be presented at this meeting.  

Interior Buildout (Level 2 & 5) - Construction Contract; 

Mr. Marshall reported that interior buildout bids had been received.  He noted that the bids were 
higher than the 2018 budgeted amount at the time when the project was designed.  He stated that 
they expected the bids to be higher due to the current market conditions.  The lowest, most 
responsible bid was from Harvey Builders in the amount of One Million Five Hundred Seven 
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Three Dollars ($1,507,983).  Following all discussions, Director 
Murphy made a motion to accept the bid from Harvey Builders in the amount of One Million 
Five Hundred Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Three Dollars ($1,507,983).  The motion 
was seconded by Director Foster and carried by unanimous vote.  

Page 9

DRAFT



3 

DM-#8258273.2

      Interior Design Services Work Order - Smith & Company Architects; 

Mr. Marshall presented the fourth floor Interior Design Services Work Order from Smith & 
Company Architects for the leased suite of Change Happens!. The suite is approximately 13,000 
square feet of existing shell space on the fourth floor.  The Work Order from Smith & Company 
Architects is a total fee of One Hundred Twenty-Two Thousand Dollars ($122,000.00).  Director 
Foster made a motion to approve the Interior Design Services Work Order from Smith & 
Company Architects in the total amount of One Hundred Twenty-Two Thousand Dollars 
($122,000.00).  The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

Grant Agreement with Houston Habitat for Humanity, Inc.; 

Peggy Foreman of Burney and Foreman presented the Resolution authorizing a Grant Agreement 
with Houston Habitat for Humanity, Inc. Ms. Foreman stated that, if approved, the Resolution 
authorized the Executive Director and/or Board Chair to execute the Grant Agreement and related 
documents granting 2 tracts of land, consisting of approximately 24,000 square feet, to Houston 
Habitat for Humanity for development a minimum of 4 (potentially 5) of affordable single-family 
homes for qualified homebuyers. Director Middleton made a motion to approve the Resolution 
authorizing a Grant Agreement with Houston Habitat for Humanity, Inc. for 2 tracts of land.  The 
motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

Grant Agreement with William A. Lawson Institute for Peace and Prosperity; 

Ms. Foreman presented the Resolution authorizing a Grant Agreement with William A. Lawson 
Institute for Peace and Prosperity (WALIPP). Ms. Foreman stated that, if approved, the 
Resolution authorized the Executive Director and/or Board Chair to execute the Grant 
Agreement and related documents granting a total of 5 tracts of land to WALIPP to develop 
an affordable multi-family housing complex for seniors, consisting of approximately 69 one-
bedroom rental units for seniors together with certain common areas. Ms. Foreman stated 
that at least 51% of the units would be leased to persons whose income does not exceed 80% 
of area median income (AMI). Director Middleton made a motion to Approve the Resolution for 
the Grant Agreement with William A. Lawson Institute for Peace and Prosperity (WALIPP). The 
motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

Affordable Housing Operations Campus Parking Garage Management Agreement; 

Ms. Foreman presented a Resolution authorizing an agreement with WinPark Management, LLC 
related to operation and management of the Affordable Housing Operation Campus Parking Garage. 
She reminded the Board that WinPark is the current manager of the Midtown Parking Garage would 
provide certain operational services for the AHOC parking garage. She stated that some additional 
work will be needed on the agreement with regards to the Scope of Services to be provided.  Director 
Murphy made a motion to approve the Resolution authorizing an agreement with WinPark 
Management, LLC. relating to the Affordable Housing Operation Campus Parking Garage.  The 
motion was seconded by Director Bond and carried by unanimous vote.   

Parking Garage Operations Budget; 

Mr. Edwards reported that the Parking Garage Operation Budget would be brought back to the Board 
at its next regular meeting. 

Page 10

DRAFT



4 

DM-#8258273.2

Affordable Housing Report. 

Mr. Edwards reported that the staff and consultants had met with the Mayor and other City 
representatives on May 16, 2022, to discuss obtaining the City’s assistance with infrastructure needs 
to support the development of affordable housing on Authority owned properties.  He stated that the 
Authority has provided the City with a list of properties from Midtown’s affordable housing inventory 
and that he is hopeful that the Authority can enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the City to help 
reduce the cost of infrastructure improvements and facilitate the development of more affordable 
housing.     

MIDTOWN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM: 

BALDWIN PARK - WALTER P MOORE / DESIGN WORKSHOP; 

Marlon Marshall, Director of Engineering and Construction, reported that most areas of Baldwin Park 
are open and available for use by the public, but that use of the playground area is restricted at this time 
due to construction.  It is anticipated that the project will be complete by August 2022.  He  reported 
that certain improvements to Glover Park as discussed in Change Order #1 were included as part of the 
Baldwin Park Project.   

CHANGE ORDERS: 

Mr. Marshall presented Change Order #1 in the amount of $44,704.77 for installation of bicycle 
amenities and sidewalk improvements at Glover Park.  Director Middleton made a motion to 
approve Change Order #1 in the amount of $44,704.77 for installation of bicycle amenities and 
sidewalk improvements at Glover Park.   The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried 
by unanimous vote.  

Construction Administration Additional Services Request - Walter P Moore 

Mr. Marshall presented the Construction Administration Additional Services Request from Walter 
P. Moore for general services associated with construction phase services for Baldwin Park in the
amount of Eleven Thousand Two Hundred Thirty Dollars ($11,230.00).  Director Murphy made a
motion to approve the Construction Administration Additional Services Request from Walter P.
Moore for general services associated with construction phase services for Baldwin Park in the
amount of Eleven Thousand Two Hundred Thirty Dollars ($11,230.00).  The motion was seconded
by Director Foster and carried by unanimous vote.

CAROLINE STREET RECONSTRUCTION – ESPA CORP/KCI; 

Mr. Marshall reported that the Contractor continues installation of pavers, rain garden amenities, and 
streetscape amenities (trash receptacles, bike racks, signage, seating) along Caroline Street. 
Additionally, he reported on the continued coordination with utility companies to resolve remaining 
conflicts with sidewalk and intersection ramp installations. 

CHANGE ORDERS: 

Mr. Marshall, presented the following change orders: 

Change Order #61 in the amount of $172,869.35 for revisions to signage and pavement markings 
to incorporate the latest requirements from City of Houston regarding bike lane striping design 

Page 11

DRAFT



5 

DM-#8258273.2

standards into the project.  Director Middleton made a motion to approve Change Order #61 in the 
amount of $172,869.35 for revisions to signage and pavement markings to incorporate the latest 
requirements from City of Houston regarding bike lane striping design standards into the project. 
The motion was seconded by Director Murphy, and it carried by unanimous vote.  

Change Order #62 in the amount of $5,934.85 for additional work to break out concrete at sign 
locations that obstruct such items as inlets, trees, or sidewalks.  Director Middleton made a motion 
to approve Change Order #62 in the amount of $5,934.85 for additional work to break out concrete 
at sign locations that obstruct such items as inlets, trees, or sidewalks.  The motion was seconded 
by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

MIDTOWN PARK – WALTER P MOORE / DESIGN WORKSHOP 

 FRONT 90 AND GARAGE IMPROVEMENTS - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Mr. Marshall presented the recommendations from the staff and consultants to award the Front 90 and 
Garage Improvements construction contract to Jerdon Enterprise in the amount of $256,604.50 for 
garage improvements and food truck electric connections.  Director Murphy made a motion to approve 
the Front 90 and Garage Improvements construction contract to Jerdon Enterprise in the amount of 
$256,604.50 for garage improvements and food truck electric connections. The motion was seconded 
by Director Bond. All Directors approved with the exception of Director Middleton who abstained.  

 BRAZOS STREET BRIDGE LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS 

 CITY OF HOUSTON INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 Mr. Marshall presented the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Houston for the Design and 
Construction of Landscaping Improvements to the Brazos Bridge at Bagby Street in an amount not to 
exceed $200,000.00.  Director Murphy made a motion to approve the Interlocal Agreement with the City 
of Houston for the Design and Construction of Landscaping Improvements to the Brazos Bridge at 
Bagby Street in an amount not to exceed $200,000.00.  The motion was seconded by Director Middleton 
and carried by unanimous vote.  

 DESIGN SERVICES WORK ORDER – DESIGN WORKSHOP 

Mr. Marshall presented the Design Services Work Order with Design Workshop in an amount not to 
exceed $78,750.00 to allow Design Workshop to move forward with the design of the Brazos Street 
Bridge Landscaping improvements. Director Middleton made a motion to approve the Design Services 
Work Order with Design Workshop in an amount not to exceed $78,750.00 to allow Design Workshop 
to move forward with the design of the Brazos Street Bridge Landscaping improvements. The motion 
was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board did not enter into a closed executive session. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned. 

Page 12

DRAFT



6 

DM-#8258273.2

_____________________________ 
Caton Fenz, Assistant Secretary 

______________________________ 
Date 

Page 13

DRAFT



1 

DM-#8258282.2

   MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

June 2, 2022 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Midtown Redevelopment Authority (the 
“Authority”) was held in person at 410 Pierce Street, First Floor Conference Room, Houston, Texas 77002, 
on Thursday, June 2, 2022, at 12:30 p.m.  The meeting was open to the public.  The roll was called of the 
duly appointed members of the Board, to-wit: 

Pos. # Name Pos. # Name 

1 Camille Foster 6 Abe Goren 
2 Donald Bond 7 Caton M. Fenz 
3 Vacant 8 John Thomas 
4 Michael F. Murphy 9 Zoe Middleton 
5 Al Odom 

and all the above were present except Directors Goren and Thomas. 

In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, David 
Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, Sally Adame, 
Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and Cynthia Alvarado; Peggy Foreman of Burney & 
Foreman; Barron F. Wallace and Mary Buzak of Bracewell LLP and Kristin Blomquist of Masterson 
Advisors.   

Chairman Odom called the meeting to order.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

No public comments were given at this meeting.  

Nomination and Election of Secretary and Assistant Secretary of the Board.  

Chairman Odom asked for nominations for Secretary and Assistant Secretary from the Board. 

Director Foster made a motion to nominate and elect Director Fenz as Secretary.  The motion was seconded 
by Director Goren and carried by unanimous vote.  

Director Goren made a motion to nominate and elect Director Foster as Assistant Secretary.  The motion was 
seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.  

Resolution Approving the Term Sheet for the Purchase of Tax Increment Contract Revenue Bonds to 
Refund Certain Outstanding Obligations of the Midtown Redevelopment Authority; Approving the 
Engagement of a Placement Agent in connection therewith; and Approving Matters related thereto. 

Barron Wallace of Bracewell LLP presented the Resolution Approving the Term Sheet for the Purchase of 
Tax Increment Contract Revenue Bonds to Refund Certain Outstanding Obligations of the Midtown 
Redevelopment Authority; Approving the Engagement of a Placement Agent in connection therewith; and 
Approving Matters related thereto. He reported that by approving the Resolution Midtown could lock in the 

Page 14

DRAFT



2 

DM-#8258282.2

interest rate thus creating savings and Midtown would not need to issue the bonds before October 2022. 
Kristin Blomquist of Masterson Advisors presented the Term Sheet showing the savings associated with this 
proposed transaction.  This would be a private placement with Regions Bank.  Following all discussion, 
Director Goren made a motion to approve the Resolution Approving the Term Sheet for the Purchase of Tax 
Increment Contract Revenue Bonds to Refund Certain Outstanding Obligations of the Midtown 
Redevelopment Authority; Approving the Engagement of a Placement Agent in connection therewith; and 
Approving Matters related thereto.  The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous 
vote.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board did not enter a closed executive session. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned. 

_____________________________ 
Caton Fenz, Secretary 

______________________________ 
Date 

Page 15

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Profit & Loss

 July 2021 through May 2022

Jul '21 - May 22

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400000 · Revenue & Support
400009 · City of Houston Tax Increment 8,050,693.87
400010 · HISD Tax Increment 1,712,762.68
400020 · Reimb Off Exp & Staff 919,393.93
400023 · HTC Build Out Reimbursement 4,338.15
400025 · Interest-Debt Service & Reserve 7,236.50
400026 · Interest-Other Bond Funds 2,140.48
400029 · Interest - Affordable Housing 3,671.05
400030 · Interest-Operating Funds 22,609.59
400032 · Other Revenue 33,788.31
400040 · 3131 EMANCIPATION 183,899.59
400041 · Affordable Housing Apts Units (Apartment rental income Affordable Housing units) 112,774.92
400042 · 402 & 410 Tenant Inome 70,675.00

Total 400000 · Revenue & Support 11,123,984.07
400441 · Bagby Park Kiosk Lease 3,500.00

Total Income 11,127,484.07

Gross Profit 11,127,484.07
Expense

500000 · BOND FUND EXPENSES
500419 · Camden Int. 450,714.33

Total 500000 · BOND FUND EXPENSES 450,714.33
510000 · INCREMENT PROJECTS/EXPENSE

510002 · T-0214 Caroline St near HCCS 1,533.32
510003 · T-0211 Holman Street St 784.82
510008 · T-0220 Afford Housing Land Bnk

510013 · T-0220 Affordable Housing Legal 193,921.75
510014 · T-0220 MRA AFF HOUS THIRD GIS 787.50
510017 · T-0220 Drainage Fees 16,986.19
510018 · Fines 434.20
510116 · BBVA Loan fees 40,008.24
510117 · Landscape Services 373,732.98
512001 · T-0220 Aff Hous Expense 1,585,278.71
512003 · Operations Center (3117 Emancipation AVe & 3112 St Charles St.)

5120031 · Lease Units Electricity 1,494.19
5120033 · Operations Center Legal 6,298.75
5120034 · Operatings Center Insurance -738.88
5120035 · Leasing Expenses (Leasing Expenses) 163,086.78
5120036 · NAI EXPENSES RECORD 5,717.09
5120037 · Tenant Emprovements (Professional project manaements services to assist in the 480.00
5120039 · 3131 Electricity 19,059.15
5120040 · Utiltites Water 638.78
5120041 · Internet Service 93.98
512003 · Operations Center (3117 Emancipation AVe & 3112 St Charles St.) - Other 3,237,591.28

Total 512003 · Operations Center (3117 Emancipation AVe & 3112 St Charles St.) 3,433,721.12

Total 510008 · T-0220 Afford Housing Land Bnk 5,644,870.69
510010 · T-0237 Baldwin Park Upgrades 313,202.35
510019 · T-0214 Caroline St 254,113.12
510024 · T-0204 Infrastruc/Street Lights 148.63
510040 · Developer Reimbursement 1,656,715.00
510041 · CIP Program Expenses

510094 · Midtown CIP TM 1,100.00
510041 · CIP Program Expenses - Other 22,008.75

Total 510041 · CIP Program Expenses 23,108.75
510043 · T-0234 Parks & Open Space & Mob 30,481.25
510044 · T-0236 Bagby  Park 5,911.64
510045 · T-0224 HTC l - Bldg Maintenance 107,119.67
510046 · T-0221 Midtown  Pk 73,414.66
510049 · SPECIAL PROJECTS 1,975,110.02
510053 · T-0233  Midtown Garage 8,031.08

Page 16

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Profit & Loss

 July 2021 through May 2022

Jul '21 - May 22

510096 · T-0207 Opr of Zone Prj Faciliti 250,000.00
510102 · HMAAC Interest Expense 28,955.15
510400 · KIOS at Bagby Park 37,400.00
510533 · T-0241 (Almeda/Crawford) 18,557.77
510534 · T-0225 Mobility & Pedest Imprv 64,887.84
510603 · BRAZOS ST WATER 10,000.00
510700 · Municipal Services Costs 781,263.00
511002 · T-0233  Midtown Park Garage 3,028.05

Total 510000 · INCREMENT PROJECTS/EXPENSE 11,288,636.81
550000 · General & Admin. Expense

550003 · Rent Expense (Additional office space) 73,005.00
550004 · Salaries

550013 · Dental Coverage 20.00
550014 · Health Insruance 136,516.59
550015 · AFLAC 2,839.23
550018 · Life Insurance 290.86
550021 · 401K contributions 674.45
550104 · VISION 3.00
550004 · Salaries - Other 1,538,172.51

Total 550004 · Salaries 1,678,516.64
5500047 · Overtime 1,735.22
550007 · Courier Service 4,442.38
550008 · Office Supply & Expense 11,179.55
550009 · Misc Exp 21,067.63
550010 · Telephone & Utilities

5500117 · GAS 539.82
550110 · Cellular Service 1,092.49
550113 · Drainage fee 6,182.22
550010 · Telephone & Utilities - Other 15,044.73

Total 550010 · Telephone & Utilities 22,859.26
550012 · Postage 1,299.46
550022 · Bank Charges & Fees 40,337.48
550023 · Trust Expenses 15,273.00
550025 · Professional Services 118,524.17
550026 · Accounting Consultants 11,536.00
550027 · Financial Audit (Audit Services) 38,500.00
550028 · Legal Consultants 304,444.65
550032 · Engineering Consultants 19,495.41
550034 · Equip Rent & Lease Expense 9,852.23
550036 · Licenses & Fees 806.00
550037 · Workman's Comp Insurance 4,001.34
550038 · Insurance - All 580,548.44
550039 · Computers & Repairs & Maint 54,145.32
550040 · Repair & Maintenance 36,923.74
550044 · Payroll Expense & PR Tax Exp 13,676.09
550045 · Payroll Fees 19,157.27
550047 · Soc Sec - Medicare 110,493.08
550050 · Depreciation Expense 267,328.68
550052 · Depre Expense-Midtown Park 371,283.01
550053 · Deprec Expense-Works of Art 18,305.65
550058 · Travel 6,375.91
550061 · Public Relations 144,162.50
550114 · Harris County Extension 26,868.75
550201 · CIP 65,001.93

Total 550000 · General & Admin. Expense 4,091,145.79
550051 · Dep Exp - Midtown Park/Garage 269,557.12
600000 · Bond Related Expenses

550055 · Amort Bond Prem -324,478.01
560039 · 2013 Bond Series Int Expense 1,201,870.30
560040 · 2015 Bond Int Expense 364,690.66
560041 · 2017 Bond Int Expense 1,940,114.56

Page 17

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Profit & Loss

 July 2021 through May 2022

Jul '21 - May 22

560042 · 2020 Bond Int Exp 513,800.02

Total 600000 · Bond Related Expenses 3,695,997.53
999999 · SUSPENSE (flow through account) 351,169.63

Total Expense 20,147,221.21
Net Ordinary Income -9,019,737.14

Net Income -9,019,737.14

Page 18

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Balance Sheet
 As of May 31, 2022

May 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
101001 · Wells Fargo Ope Acctg 64040 4,630,299.80
101002 · Infrastructure  Projects  1731 954.78
101010 · WF Surplus Acct 63943 1,464.37
101020 · WF FTA Enhanced Path 63919 60.23
101030 · Wells Fargo 1094 (income from tenantss) 70,675.00
102200 · Logic Operating Account (Investment Account) 5,067,793.98
103200 · TexStar Operating Acct 1111 6,957.76
103600 · Wells Fargo Oper Inves 63901 732.64
103700 · WF Operating Saving 3215777180 45,074.22
104000 · Affordable Housing Accounts

104021 · WF Afford Hous 3927 592,704.96
104022 · WF Pilot Program  3935 345.07
104116 · TexStar Aff. Hsng MM  1800 2,016.22
104200 · Logic Affordable Housing (Investment Account) 92,698.90
1043000 · PNC  BBVA USA 1,023,343.25
1044000 · Wells Fargo NAI (NAI Partners Account) 51,275.85

Total 104000 · Affordable Housing Accounts 1,762,384.25
105000 · Trustee Investments

105001 · Pledge Revenue Fund 422885
105100 · Pledge Revenue Fund -422885 597.05

Total 105001 · Pledge Revenue Fund 422885 597.05
105002 · Debt Service Fund

105200 · BNY-Debt Service Fund 422896 2,006,364.98

Total 105002 · Debt Service Fund 2,006,364.98
105003 · Reserve Fund 422897

105324 · TexStar Debt Res Fnd MM 1023 (Debt Reserve Fund) 7,428,933.84

Total 105003 · Reserve Fund 422897 7,428,933.84
105009 · Austin Park Maint. Fund 422919

105901 · Austin Park Money Market Acct. 3,582.05

Total 105009 · Austin Park Maint. Fund 422919 3,582.05
107000 · BOND FUNDS

107009 · BNY-TICR AFF HSG 693802 48.59
107012 · BNY 2011 Escrow 443264 9.99
107018 · LOGIC 2017 PROJECT FUND (Trust Account  7487592004) 1,187,447.71

Total 107000 · BOND FUNDS 1,187,506.29
Total 105000 · Trustee Investments 10,626,984.21

Total Checking/Savings 22,213,381.24
Accounts Receivable

130100 · Tax Increments Receivable
103150 · City of Houston - Tax Increment 1,265,391.05
103152 · Harris County Tax Increment 1,712,763.00
130200 · HISD Tax Increment 10,377,010.00

Page 19

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Balance Sheet
 As of May 31, 2022

May 31, 22

Total 130100 · Tax Increments Receivable 13,355,164.05
170000 · Accounts Receivable

170008 · KIOS -6,400.00
170010 · Midtown Management District 127,016.14
170011 · Midtown  Parks Conservancy 504,561.09
170020 · HX Houston Exponential AR 46,471.84
170021 · HTC BUILTOUT 338,285.67
170052 · OST/ALMEDA -2,366,566.00

Total 170000 · Accounts Receivable -1,356,631.26
Total Accounts Receivable 11,998,532.79

Total Current Assets 34,211,914.03
Fixed Assets

150000 · Fixed Assets
150010 · Office Furniture & Equipment 26,321.36
150011 · Accumluated Depreciation-Furn. -26,321.36
150020 · Computer Equipment 32,057.11
150021 · Accumulated Depreciation-Comp. -32,057.11
150040 · Land - JPI Park 736,911.00
150045 · Walgreens/Lui Park Land 141,000.00
150062 · Land - Houston Tech.Center l 798,053.89
150063 · Houston Tech Center l 2,676,862.62
150064 · Accm Deprec-Houston Tech Cntr l -2,489,270.41
150065 · Land - HTC Phase ll 697,219.00
150066 · Houston Tech Center ll 2,816,117.96
150067 · Accum.Deprec. HTC Phase l -2,205,959.54
150069 · Land - Bagby Park 1,318,870.15
150070 · BagbyPark 2,453,218.83
150071 · Accum.Deprec. BagbyPark -1,486,893.61
150075 · Midtown Park 2905 Travis St 3,506,306.26
150078 · Midtown Park Land-Tracts l & ll 4,416,883.45
1500783 · Accum Deprec-Works of Art -130,649.03
1500784 · Acc Depr Office Housng & Garage -164,161.00
150078A · Midtown (Superblock) Garage 13,784.20
150078B · Midtown (Superblockj) Park 5,299,848.40
150078C · Midtown Garage - Depreciable As

1500781 · Acc Depre - Midtown Garage -1,886,899.88
150078C · Midtown Garage - Depreciable As - Other 23,069,902.00

Total 150078C · Midtown Garage - Depreciable As 21,183,002.12
150078D · Midtown Park - Depreciable Asse

1500782 · Acc Depre MIdtown Park -2,888,601.49
150078D · Midtown Park - Depreciable Asse - Other 19,094,553.00

Total 150078D · Midtown Park - Depreciable Asse 16,205,951.51
150078E · Land - Operations Center 1,999,033.00
150078H · Midtown Park - Depr Assc 2&3 5,506,202.00
150078I · Bagby Park - Depr Asset  (2020) 1,049,784.00

Page 20

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Balance Sheet
 As of May 31, 2022

May 31, 22

150078J · Opration Center Dep Asset 28,670,952.00
150079B · Works of Art - Donated 1,137,027.00
150080 · Land (Resale) (Land purchase for resale)

150081 · Earnest Money -49,744.89
150082 · Option Fees 8,170.00
150803 · Affordable Housing Legal 104,930.05
150804 · Affordable Housing Misc 753,699.46
150805 · AFFORD HOUS GRANTS 126,750.28
150080 · Land (Resale) (Land purchase for resale) - Other 43,130,447.97

Total 150080 · Land (Resale) (Land purchase for resale) 44,074,252.87
150089 · Land HMAAC (Land) 1,206,150.00
150090 · HMAAC Property 918,850.00
150091 · Accum Depr HMAAC -516,852.60
150100 · 2800 MAIN 317,069.93
150782A · Acc Depr Midtown Park - Phase I -137,655.00

Total 150000 · Fixed Assets 140,011,909.00

Total Fixed Assets 140,011,909.00
Other Assets

180000 · Travel Advance 307.96
Total Other Assets 307.96

TOTAL ASSETS 174,224,130.99

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

200000 · Accounts Payable 1,560,274.44

Total Accounts Payable 1,560,274.44
Other Current Liabilities

200001 · Current Liablities
200005 · Accrued Expenses 692,052.00
201000 · Operating Account Liabilities -3,432.48
201001 · MIDCORP Kios -35,226.98
201002 · Due to MPC 15,850.00
202000 · Project Fund Liabilities 18,578.35
204000 · HMAAC NOTE - CURRENT 810,358.00
2103008 · CRI Current Camden 5,506,201.20
200001 · Current Liablities - Other 13,800.00

Total 200001 · Current Liablities 7,018,180.09
200CRI · CRI 6,000,000.00
2030112 · BBVA Taxable Loan 9,135,390.05
2030113 · BBVA LOAN TAX EXEMPT 4,778,139.11
2103007 · Developer Advances Midtown Park 4,979,494.00
25000 · Retainage Payable (Retainange) 1,257,348.98

Total Other Current Liabilities 33,168,552.23

Total Current Liabilities 34,728,826.67

Page 21

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Balance Sheet
 As of May 31, 2022

May 31, 22

Long Term Liabilities
210000 · Long Term Liabilities

210010 · Bonds Payable Series 1998 -3,500.00
210047 · Bonds Payabe Series '13 21,925,000.00
210048 · Current Portion Bonds Payable 3,640,000.00
210049 · Bond Payable Series '15 6,515,000.00
210050 · Bond Payable Series 2017 35,285,000.00
210053 · Accrued Bond Int 2015 series 224,425.07
210055 · Accrued Bond Interest 13 Series 647,160.90
210056 · Accrued Bond Interest Series 11 0.02
210058 · Series 2013 BOND PREMIUM 830,587.99
210059 · Series 2015 Bond Prem 410,728.38
210060 · Accrued Bond Interst 2017 256,900.04
210061 · Series 2017 Bond Premium 3,259,853.95
210062 · Accrued Bond Interest Series 17 1,044,676.94
210063 · Series 2020 Bond Premium -41,424.35
210064 · Bonds Payable Series 2020 9,215,000.00
2103000 · LOANS

2103003 · HMAAC LOAN REFINANCED -87,040.29
Total 2103000 · LOANS -87,040.29

Total 210000 · Long Term Liabilities 83,122,368.65
Total Long Term Liabilities 83,122,368.65

Total Liabilities 117,851,195.32
Equity

1110 · Retained Earnings (Retained Earnings) 65,392,672.81
Net Income -9,019,737.14

Total Equity 56,372,935.67
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 174,224,130.99

Page 22

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Trial Balance
 As of June 30, 2022

Jun 30, 22

Debit Credit

101001 · Wells Fargo Ope Acctg 64040 22,293,136.57
101002 · Infrastructure  Projects  1731 954.78
101010 · WF Surplus Acct 63943 1,464.37
101020 · WF FTA Enhanced Path 63919 60.23
101030 · Wells Fargo 1094 76,875.00
102200 · Logic Operating Account 5,067,793.98
103200 · TexStar Operating Acct 1111 6,957.76
103600 · Wells Fargo Oper Inves 63901 732.64
103700 · WF Operating Saving 3215777180 45,074.22
104021 · WF Afford Hous 3927 419,898.95
104022 · WF Pilot Program  3935 345.07
104116 · TexStar Aff. Hsng MM  1800 2,016.22
104200 · Logic Affordable Housing 92,698.90
1043000 · PNC  BBVA USA 1,023,343.25
1044000 · Wells Fargo NAI 51,275.85
105100 · Pledge Revenue Fund -422885 597.05
105200 · BNY-Debt Service Fund 422896 7,532,036.56
105324 · TexStar Debt Res Fnd MM 1023 7,428,933.84
105901 · Austin Park Money Market Acct. 3,582.05
107009 · BNY-TICR AFF HSG 693802 48.59
107012 · BNY 2011 Escrow 443264 9.99
107018 · LOGIC 2017 PROJECT FUND 1,187,447.71

TOTAL 45,235,283.58

Page 23

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Transactions by Account

 As of March 31, 2021

Wells Fargo Ope Acctg 64040 30-Jun-22

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Bill Pmt -Check 05/01/2022 10275 Equi-Tax, Inc. MontlyConsultation Service fee per contract 500.00
Bill Pmt -Check 05/01/2022 10276 Midtown Scouts Square Property. LP CONTRACT PARKING  12 SPACES 900.00
Check 05/09/2022 10281 Marlon Marshall Kykle Warren Park/Pacific Park/Southrn Gateway        1,842.65
Check 05/10/2022 10283 TKE Elevators REPLACEMENT CHECK 1,712.12
Check 05/12/2022 10284 Mathias Thibodeaux 2022 APA CONFERENCE SAN DIEGO CALIFOR 484.30
Bill Pmt -Check 05/12/2022 10285 CISCO SYSTEMS, INC. A-FLEX Collaboration Flex Plan Sub Id: 549133 1,600.37
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10286 Bracewell LLP 0051534.000001 GENERAL 1,406.25
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10287 Design Workshop, Inc. Project 006786.00 Houston Midtown District Work 8,086.25
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10288 FireTron, Inc. FIRE ALARM INSPECTION 990.00
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10289 Goode Systems & Consulting, Inc. Initial Conference Room Equipment (Cameras, H  7,954.00
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10290 Houston Business Journal Advertisement 1,408.00
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10291 IDS Engineering Group MIDTOWN PSA WO NO. 001 EXT 09  02-26-202   987.28
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10292 Landscape Art, Inc. BALDWIN PARK 107,004.75
Bill Pmt -Check 05/26/2022 10293 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOCREDIT CARD REIMBURSENTS DUE 12,806.77

Bill Pmt -Check 06/13/2022 10327 Ryland Enterprise, Inc dba ARVO Realty AdBuyer/Tenant: Change Happens  Seller/Landlord   92,173.10
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10328 Spectrum Paint & Commercial Services, IncPainting 1,530.40
Check 06/30/2022 10329 Schramm, Kandi L. Expense Reimbursement 53.75
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10330 Bee-Line Delivery Service, Inc. Courier 357.65
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10331 Bracewell LLP Legal Services 22,106.22
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10332 DJ MAV MUSIC Board Meeting  sound provided  06-09-2022 1,335.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10333 FLEXTG FINANCIAL SERVICES CANNON/IR-C5750I 724.92
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10335 HVJ Associates Baldwin Park Improvements 698.50
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10336 IDS Engineering Group Professional Services 7,136.25
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10337 KCI Technologies Professional Consultations 20,790.22
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10338 LION HEART Professional Consultations 27,006.73
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10340 NEVA Corporation REPLACE FUSE 205.80
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10340 One World Strategy Group, LLC Public Relations 15,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10341 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LL Lease Equipment 163.20
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10342 Staples Advantage office supplies 1,897.09
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10343 TKE Elevators Elevator Service 1,724.44
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10344 Wulfe & Co. Consulting for Bagby Park and Midown Park MAY 3,400.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10345 Carr Riggs & Ingram, LLC Final Billing for agreed-upon-procedures 06-30-20 300.00
Check 06/30/2022 10346 Gilmore, Theresa D Samsung Toner MLTD111S D111S High Yeild 35.71
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10347 Midtown Parks Conservancy Operating Zone and Project Facilities 750,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10348 Middleton Brown, L.L.C. Baldwin Park Renovations - Inspection Services S     47,686.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10349 Goode Systems & Consulting, Inc. IT Servoces 2,952.48
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10350 THR Enterprises, Inc. Cleaning Supplies 3,500.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 10352 City of Houston Mayor's Office of Economi COH FY2022 Municipal Services Payment 780,707.00

1,929,167.20

Page 24

DRAFT



 Midtown Redevelopment Authority
 Transactions by Account

 As of March 31, 2021

WF Afford Hous 3927
5/31/2022

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 3954 Vergal Gay & Associates Project Mgt Sevices Emanicipation Bld Ten   1,642.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 3956 Bracewell LLP Legal Consultants 46,643.75
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 3957 Four Eleven LLC Landscape Services  3322 FRANCIS ST   T     4,143.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 3958 Roberta F. Burroughs &  Associates, Project:  Midtown Affordable Housing Plan   7,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 3959 CCPPI Amended Housing Grant Agreement May-2 109,833.34
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 3960 SKA Consulting, L.P. Affordable Housing 14,460.93
Bill Pmt -Check 06/30/2022 3961 JEFF MCSCHAN - Video Production Video Production 3,000.00

186,723.02

Page 25

DRAFT



Trustee Investments (Bond Funds) Beginning Balance Chase BKNY 
MELLON

WELLS 
FARGO TexSTAR/LOGIC Ending Balance

422885 Pledge Reserve  Funds 422896 597.05 597.05

422896  Debt Service US Treasury Money Market Funds 7,532,038.56
7,532,038.56             

422897  Reserve Fund Money Mkt 0.00
-                            

105324 · TexStar Debt Res Fnd MM 1023 (Debt Reserve Fun 7,428,933.84 7,428,933.84

422919 Austin Park Maint.(2001 Series) US Treasury Mone   3,582.05 3,582.05

 LOGIC 2017 AFFORDABLE HOUSING (Trust Account) 48.59 48.59

LOGIC 2017 Project Funds 1,187,447.71 1,187,447.71

443264 2011 Escrow 1998 2001 9.99 9.99

TOTALS 16,152,060.74        

Midtown Redevelopment Authority
Bond & Project Fund Expenses & Balances

Thursday, June 30, 2022

Page 26

DRAFT



713.630.7300 main  
 
 
 
 

1301 McKinney, Suite 1100 · Houston, Texas 77010  
 

 
 

 

 

June 15, 2022 

 

Mr. Marlon Marshall 
Manager of Capital Projects 
Midtown Redevelopment Authority 
410 Pierce, Suite 355 
Houston, TX  77002 
 
Re:  FY 2023 Midtown CIP Work Order 1 - Renewal 
 
Dear Marlon, 
 
We are pleased to submit this proposal to renew CIP Work Order 1 for the 2023 Fiscal Year (July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023). 
 
The total proposed fee of $174,865 (inclusive of expenses and subconsultant expenses) covers the 
anticipated work efforts of Walter P Moore and team members based on hourly services at the current 
hourly rates. The subconsultants will be identified later as needed for tasks such as Landscape 
Architecture, MEP, or Architecture.  
 
We look forward to continuing to support the development of capital improvement projects in Midtown. 
Please contact me with any questions or concerns. 

Sincerely, 
 
Walter P. Moore and Associates, Inc. 
 

       
Rachel Ray-Welsh, P.E., STP, ENV SP  Lee Anne Dixon, P.E., PTOE, STP 
Senior Associate    Senior Principal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 

 

Page 27

DRAFT



 Page 1 of 1 FY 2023 Midtown CIP Work Order 1 - Renewal 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

Form of Work Order 

 

WORK ORDER NO. 1 – FY 2023 Midtown CIP Work Order 1 - Renewal 

 

This Work Order is issued subject to and is governed by that certain professional services agreement 

between Midtown and Consultant dated October 1, 2021. 

 

Work Order Date:  July 1, 2022 

 

Consultant:  Walter P Moore 

 

Type of Compensation: Time and Materials to a Maximum 

 

Compensation:  Maximum of $174,865 

 

Location of Services:  Houston, Texas 

 

Description of Services:  This work order is to serve as a general services agreement for efforts associated 

with assisting Midtown during implementation of Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for a period of one 

year.  See attached hour estimate for additional details.  Specific duties included in this fee are listed below: 

 

• Updating the CIP based on our meetings and discussions 

• Coordination with other Consultants 

• Attending Board meetings as necessary 

• Consultation, assistance, and coordination of activities as per section 5.2 of our Professional 

Services Agreement 

• Development and updating of maps as requested by Midtown 

• Parking feasibility assessments and coordination 

• Other tasks as assigned 

 

 

Schedule Requirements:  Commencement of Services:  July 1, 2022 

    Completion of Services:  June 30, 2023 

 

Consultant:      Client: 

WALTER P. MOORE AND     MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT 

ASSOCIATES, INC.     AUTHORITY 

             

 
By: ___________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 

       Lee Anne Dixon, P.E., PTOE, STP          Mathias Thibodeaux – Executive Director 

       Senior Principal 

       _____June 15, 2022___________________        ____________________________________ 

       Date            Date 

Page 28

DRAFT



Work Order 1 - Fiscal Year 2023 Renewal through June 30, 2023

Midtown Redevelopment Authority

Sr/Mng Principal Sr. Parking Senior Senior Senior Planner Graduate Senior CAD Senior CAD Senior Direct

Principal Consultant PM Planner Engineer Engineer Designer Manager CAD Technician Field Rep Expenses

$330 $300 $250 $245 $190 $190 $150 $130 $180 $180 $140 $105 $150

Bi-monthly meetings to discuss Midtown's CIP 24 24 24

Coordination with Goodman Consultants 15

Civil Site Support 15 25 30 500.00$            

Attending Board Meetings as necessary 24 36

Mapping/ Graphics Support 10 7 15 8 1,500.00$         

General Planning, plan updates, mobility, etc. 10 30 50

Affordable Housing 9 23 23

Preperation or assistance with any global CIP 

request (includes Section 5.2)
16 10 35 25 25 500.00$            

Parking Coordination 71 500.00$            

Totals Hours 59 49 95 65 83 107 38 55 0 25 8 0 0

Total Cost per Employee $19,470 $14,700 $23,750 $15,925 $15,770 $20,330 $5,700 $7,150 $0 $4,500 $1,120 $0 $0 $3,000

Total Fee Including Expenses $131,415

Transporation Phase O03R Expenses Total

O03R Hours 44 30 74 15 15 8

O03R Fee $14,520 $0 $0 $7,350 $0 $14,060 $0 $1,950 $0 $2,700 $1,120 $0 $500 $42,200

Traffic Phase T03

T03 Hours 20 10 10

T03 Fee $0 $0 $0 $4,900 $0 $0 $0 $1,300 $0 $1,800 $0 $0 $500 $8,500

Planning T03P

T03P Hours 10 15 60 8 15

T03P Fee $3,300 $0 $0 $3,675 $11,400 $1,520 $2,250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $23,145

Affordable Housing T03P

T03P Hours 5 23 23

T03P Fee $1,650 $0 $0 $0 $4,370 $0 $3,450 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,470

Civil Phase C03

C03 Hours 49 25 30

C03 Fee $0 $14,700 $0 $0 $0 $4,750 $0 $3,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500 $23,850

Parking Phase P03

P03 Hours 95

P03 Fee $0 $0 $23,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500 $24,250

Check of Total Hours 59 49 95 65 83 107 38 55 0 25 8 0 0 $131,415

Subconsultants (TBD) $39,500

10% Markup on Subconsultants $3,950

Total Fee (Includes Labor and Expenses) $174,865

Includes Diagnostics and Electrical for Garage

Assisting with grant applications including project 

documentation, research, reference materials, 

and submittals.

Misc. map production request & updates

Task Notes

Includes Strategic Plan  & other planning 

coordination efforts with DW

6/15/2022

Page 29

DRAFT



Agreement Between Owner and Contractor   Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[INSERT NAME AND ADDRESS] 

 

 

 

 

The Project is: 

 

The Midtown Park Front 90 Plaza and Garage Improvements project consists of improvements 

and renovations at Midtown Park in Houston, Texas which can be generally describe as follows; 

 

1. Electrical outlets 

2. Water hose bib 

3. Exhaust fans 

4. Re-grading of the existing slopes and drains in the garage tunnels 

5. Replace door hardware with chemical resistant 316 Stainless or approved equal 

 

The Engineer is: 

Walter P. Moore and Associates, Inc. 

1301 McKinney, Suite 1100 

Houston, TX 77010 

 

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

The Contract Documents are defined as set forth in the General Conditions. A partial list of 

Contract Documents is provided in Article 7 of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT 

 

The Contractor shall fully execute the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 

 

 

Agreement Between Owner and Contractor

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of  the ____ day of __________, 2022.

BETWEEN the Owner:

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

410 Pierce, Suite 355

Houston, TX 77002

and the  Contractor:

JERDON ENTERPRISE, L.P. 
13403 Redfish Lane
Stafford, TX  77477

Page 30

DRAFT



Agreement Between Owner and Contractor   Page 2 of 5 

ARTICLE 3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND FINAL COMPLETION 

 

3.1  The date of commencement of the Work shall be established in the Notice to Proceed 

issued by the Owner. 

 

3.2  The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement indicated in the 

Notice to Proceed. 

 

3.3       The Contractor shall achieve substantial completion of the Work not later than 90 

calendar days from the date of commencement and shall achieve final completion of the Work 

not later than  120 calendar days from the date of commencement, subject to adjustments of the 

Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents.   

 

3.4  Liquidated damages for this Contract are $ 500.00 per calendar day. Additional 

provisions regarding liquidated damages are set forth in Section 3.07 of the General Conditions. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 4 BASIS FOR PAYMENT 

 

4.1  Contractor shall be entitled to payment of ____________________________ Dollars 

($______________________) as the Contract Price for full and complete performance of the 

Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 

4.2  The Contract Price is based upon the following alternates, if any, which are described in 

the Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 

 

 N/A 

 

4.3 Unit prices, if any are as follows: 

 

 Unit prices are as set forth in the Contractor’s Bid Form. 

 

ARTICLE 5 CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 

In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement, Contractor hereby expressly makes the 

representations and warranties contained in the first paragraph of Section 2.01 of the General 

Conditions as if such representations and warranties were set forth in full in this Article 5. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 MISCELLANEOUS 

 

6.1  Terms used in this Agreement and not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to 

such terms in the General Conditions. 

 

Page 31

DRAFT

JKaku
Typewriter
Two Hundred Fifty Six Thousand 
Six Hundred Four Dollars and Fifty Cents

JKaku
Typewriter
256,604.50



Agreement Between Owner and Contractor   Page 3 of 5 

6.2  The Owner’s representative is: 

 

Marlon Marshall 

Manager, Capital Projects 

Midtown Redevelopment Authority 

410 Pierce, Suite 355 

Houston, TX 77002 

 

6.3  The Contractor’s representative is: 

 

[Representative’s Name] 

[Title] 

 

[Contractor’s Address] 

[City, State, Zip] 

Telephone: (___) __________ 

 

6.4.  Neither the Owner’s nor the Contractor’s representative shall be changed without ten (10) 

days’ prior written notice to the other party. 

 

6.5  Other provisions: 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 7 PARTIAL LIST OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

A partial list of the Contract Documents is provided below: 

 

7.1  This Agreement as executed by the Owner and the Contractor and its exhibits attached 

hereto, which are incorporated herein by reference and which include the following: 

 

Exhibit A – Contractor Good Faith Efforts 

Exhibit B – Description of Drawings 

 

7.2  The General Conditions (and its Exhibits A through J ) attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference. 

 

7.3  The Special Conditions, if any, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference. Descriptions of the Special Conditions by document, title and pages are provided 

below. 

 

Document   Title                Pages 

Special Conditions   Special Conditions of the Agreement  14 

 

[C  o  n  tract  or  ’  s N  a  me  .]

Darrol Vincent, Jr.
President

13403 Redfish Lane
Stafford, TX  77477
281-561-5000

Jerdon Enterprise, L P.

Page 32

DRAFT



Agreement Between Owner and Contractor   Page 4 of 5 

7.4  The Specifications. The Specifications are those contained in the Project Manual for the 

Project dated November 2021, as amended by any Addenda. Such Specifications are 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

7.5  The Drawings. Descriptions of the Drawings by number, title and date are provided in 

Exhibit C to the Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference. The Drawings are dated 

August 5, 2021 unless a different date is shown below. 

 

Number Title Date 

    

1. N/A   

    

    

    

 

7.6  The Addenda. Descriptions of the Addenda by number, date and pages are provided 

below and each such addendum is incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Number   Date       Pages 

 

1. N/A 

 

7.7  Those documents set forth below, each of which is incorporated herein by reference: 

 

1.  Advertisement for Bids and/or Invitation to Bidders 

2.  Instructions to Bidders 

3.  Bid of Contractor 

4.  Bid Questionnaire 

5.  Notice of Award 

6.  Notice to Proceed 

 

7.8  Refer to the definition of Contract Documents in the General Conditions for the 

remainder of the documents that make up the Contract Documents. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE AND BONDS 

 

Contractor shall be required to furnish insurance and bonds meeting the requirements of the 

Contract Documents. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement is executed by the duly authorized representatives of 

Contractor and Owner as of the day and year first written above in at least three originals, of 

which one is to be delivered to the Contractor, one to the Owner, and one to the Engineer. 

 

 

     1                         April 8, 2022                                                     10
     2                             April 18, 2022                                                     1

Page 33

DRAFT



Agreement Between Owner and Contractor   Page 5 of 5 

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT    [INSERT CONTRACTOR NAME]: 

AUTHORITY: 

 

 

______________________________    ______________________________ 

OWNER (Signature)       CONTRACTOR (Signature) 

 

______________________________    _____________________________ 

(Printed name)        (Printed name) 

 

_______________________________    _____________________________ 

(Title)         (Title) 

Page 34

DRAFT

JKaku
Textbox
JERDON ENTERPRISE, L.P.:

JKaku
Typewriter
By: Jerdon Holding, L.L.C., General Partner
Darrol Vincent, Jr.



Page 35

DRAFT

Gaye
Typewritten Text
18,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,825.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
2,400.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
2,400.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
40.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,600.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,750.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
4,560.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,180.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,240.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
4,560.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
8,100.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
400.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
10,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
250.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
500.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
5.50

Gaye
Typewritten Text
22.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
0.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
30.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
70.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
150.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
18.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
8,500.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
70.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
6,600.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,250.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
900.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
900.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
18,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
30,600.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
2,400.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
2,400.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
6,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,600.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,750.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
4,560.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,180.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,240.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
4,560.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
16,200.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
800.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
10,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
250.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
1,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
2,612.50

Gaye
Typewritten Text
242.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
0.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
14,250.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
4,200.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
1,800.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
810.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
8,500.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
28,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
33,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,250.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
5,400.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
5,400.00



Page 36

DRAFT

Gaye
Typewritten Text
16.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
2,500.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
67.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
275.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
800.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
3,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
15,000.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
16,750.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
550.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
550.00

Gaye
Typewritten Text
256,604.50

Gaye
Typewritten Text
253,554.50



GRANT AGREEMENT 

Page 37

DRAFT



Page 1 

Grant Agreement 

June 17, 2022 

Dear Mr. Thibodeaux, 

It is my pleasure to inform you that the Board of Directors of Houston Endowment Inc. (the “Foundation” 
or “Grantor”) has authorized a grant of $250,000 to Midtown Redevelopment Authority subject to 
Grantee’s acceptance of the terms and conditions below and contained in Exhibit A as follows (collectively, 
the “Agreement”): 

THE GRANTEE AND GRANTOR (AS SET FORTH BELOW) AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

GRANTEE:   Midtown Redevelopment Authority 

Matt Thibodeaux 
Executive Director 
410 Pierce Street, Suite 355 
Houston, TX 77002 

GRANTOR:  Houston Endowment Inc. 
600 Travis 
Suite 6400 
Houston, Texas 77002 

GRANT AMOUNT: $250,000 

TYPE OF GRANT: Restricted  
Restricted Grant: shall be used only for the specific Purpose as set forth in the REASON FOR SUPPORT below. 
Unrestricted Grant is for general operating support. 

REASON FOR SUPPORT: Project Support for Midtown Cultural Arts District to Build Capacity and 
Codevelop a Houston Cultural Districts Plan (the “Purpose”). 

REFERENCE NUMBER: 32293 - Please refer to this reference number for future communications as it 
will serve as the identification number for this grant. 

PAYMENT TERMS: After receipt by the Foundation of a fully-executed copy of this Agreement and all 
other documents as described below, grant funds will be paid as set forth in the Payment Schedule below, 

Page 38

DRAFT



Page 2 

provided Grantee is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement at the time of each 
scheduled payment. The Payment Schedule Dates listed may be amended from time to time in the 
Foundation’s sole discretion. If any Payment Contingency or Required Deliverable are completed prior to 
a Deliverable Due Date, Grantor may, within its sole discretion, choose to make a payment earlier than the 
Payment Schedule Date. 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Payments are scheduled to be disbursed as set forth below (the “Payment 
Schedule”). Payment is expected to be released by Foundation on or before Payment Schedule Date 
indicated below and does not reflect date payment is guaranteed to be received by Grantee: 

Payment Number Payment Schedule Date Amount 
1 08/31/2022 $200,000 
2 12/31/2022 $50,000 

PAYMENT CONTINGENCIES: The Foundation has placed additional requirements on individual 
payments, as indicated in the table below (the “Payment Contingency Schedule”). Payment Contingencies 
must be met by the Deliverable Due Date and may require additional documentation.  Should you have any 
questions about the Payment Contingencies Schedule, please contact your assigned program officer. 

Payment Number Deliverable Due Date Payment Contingency 
1 06/30/2022 Contract Returned 
2 10/31/2022 The seven cultural districts1 will 

convene to create and deliver an 
MOU, subject to the Foundation’s 
review and approval, to specify the 

steps to initiate and develop a 
strategic co-planning process to 
codevelop a Houston Cultural 

Districts Plan. 

Disbursement details for Payment 
Number 2 shall be mutually agreed 
upon by all seven cultural districts 

and the Foundation. 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION: Grantee agrees to furnish the Foundation the required forms and/or 
reports (“Required Deliverables”) by the Deliverable Due Date listed in the Requirement Schedule below 
(the “Requirement Schedule”).  

1 Consisting of East End Cultural District, Third Ward Cultural District, Fifth Ward Cultural District, Arts District, 
Theater District, Museum District, and Midtown Cultural Arts District 

Page 39

DRAFT



Page 3 

REQUIREMENT SCHEDULE: 

Deliverable Due Date Required Deliverable 
10/31/2022 Payment Eligibility Form 
12/31/2023 Unspent Funds Form 
12/31/2023 Summative Report 
12/31/2023 The seven cultural districts will jointly submit a 

co-designed strategic plan to Houston 
Endowment to determine if strategies align for 

potential future funding. 

The Foundation reserves the right to amend a Deliverable Due Date; if a Deliverable Due Date has changed, 
Grantee will be notified in writing, which may include electronic mail, and given at least 30 days to complete 
the Required Deliverable. Failure to submit a Form or meet a Payment Contingency may result in a change 
in the Payment Schedule and possible cancellation of the grant. Failure to submit any other requirements 
may negatively impact future funding requests from Grantee.  Additional documentation may be required 
within the sole discretion of the Foundation. 

Additional details about required forms and reports: 

• Payment Eligibility Forms shall be submitted for each year, following the first payment, in which
Grantee expects a payment, as outlined in the Payment Schedule.

• Unspent Funds Forms shall be submitted for restricted grants, after the final payment unless
otherwise mutually agreed upon by the Grantor and Grantee. If any Foundation funds in excess of
$999.99 remain, the balance of such funds must be returned to the Foundation, unless otherwise
agreed to by the Foundation.

• Formative and/or Summative Reports, if required, shall be submitted by the Deliverable Due Date 
specified. The information requested in Formative and/or Summative Reports will be developed
over the course of the grant term and provided to Grantee prior to the Deliverable Due Date.
Typically, reports will request updates on the effective use of grant funds and/or the impact of the
specific project or program for which the grant funds were awarded.

PUBLICATIONS: Permission is hereby given for Grantee to use any wording contained in this Agreement 
in materials for external publication, e.g., press releases.  Proposed releases for publication or broadcasting 
containing additional information must be submitted to the Foundation for approval. Grantee may not use 
the name, trademark, logo, symbol, or other image or trade name of the Foundation or its employees in any 
advertisement, promotion, or other form of publicity or news release or that in any way implies 
endorsement without the prior written consent of the Foundation. Grantee agrees to forward to the 
Foundation copies of any news releases, published materials, or media articles mentioning this grant which 
come to Grantee’s notice or attention.   

Page 40

DRAFT



Page 4 

Both the Foundation and the Grantee retain the right to include or not include information relating to this 
grant on their respective websites, in periodic reports and newsletters and other materials issued by or on 
behalf of their organizations and to any public media. The Foundation may include any photographs 
Grantee may have provided, Grantee’s logo or trademark, or other information or materials about Grantee 
and its activities in such materials. The Foundation will make a good faith effort to seek consent of the 
Grantee and/or provide advance notice if the Grantee is featured prominently in such materials. 

Furthermore, the Foundation desires that all resources of Grantee be dedicated to accomplishing its 
charitable purposes.  Accordingly, Grantee agrees not to recognize the Foundation, its board members or 
staff, or this grant with certificates, plaques, or similar mementos.  

Should you have any questions, please email your assigned program officer. 

USE OF NAME: Grantee acknowledges that the name and mark “Houston Endowment Inc.” and all 
variations thereof are the sole and exclusive property of the Foundation, that any and all uses of the Houston 
Endowment Inc. name by Grantee shall inure solely to the benefit of the Foundation, and that Grantee shall 
not acquire any right, title or interest in Houston Endowment Inc. All uses by Grantee in any manner shall 
be subject to inspection by and approval of the Foundation, which approval may be granted or withheld in 
the sole and absolute discretion of the Foundation if not in accordance with the PUBLICATIONS section 
herein. The Foundation may require that at any time, Grantee immediately discontinue and forever 
thereafter desist from any and all use of “Houston Endowment Inc.” and/or either destroy or deliver to the 
Foundation, at no charge to the Foundation, stationery, brochures, proposed paid media and other similar 
materials bearing Houston Endowment Inc. that are in the possession or control of Grantee. 

RIGHT TO DISCONTINUE FUNDING: The Foundation may, in its sole discretion, discontinue or 
suspend funding or demand return of any unspent funds based on reasons including, but not limited to, 
the following:  

(a) the reports required herein are not submitted to the Foundation on a timely basis;

(b) the reports do not comply with the terms of this Agreement or fail to contain adequate
information to allow the Foundation to determine if the funds have been used for their
intended Purpose;

(c) grant funds have not been used for their intended Purpose or have been used in a manner
inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement;

(d) a payment has been made that may, in the judgment of the Foundation, expose the Foundation
to liability, adverse tax consequences, or constitutes a taxable expenditure;

(e) action has been taken by Grantee which, in the Foundation’s sole discretion, could reasonably
result in public disrepute;

Page 41

DRAFT



Page 5 

(f) the Purpose for which the grant was made can no longer be accomplished; or

(g) the Foundation, in its sole discretion, is not satisfied with the progress of the activities funded
by the grant or compliance with any contingency requirement.

The Foundation will provide notice of any determinations made under this paragraph.  In the event the 
Foundation takes action permitted by this paragraph solely based on (f) and (g), and Grantee provides 
documentation that it has incurred obligations consistent with the terms of the grant in good faith reliance 
on this Agreement and the approved budget, the Foundation will consider permitting grant funds to be 
used to pay such obligations.  

Any violation of the terms and conditions set forth herein will permit the Foundation to terminate any and 
all obligations with respect to further distributions, whether to be made as part of this grant or any other 
approved grant from the Foundation. Grantee will repay the Foundation, upon demand, the amount of any 
funds spent for purposes inconsistent with or contrary to this Agreement or the approved budget. 

NOTICE OF CHANGES: Grantee is required to notify the assigned program officer within 30 days of 
Grantee’s knowledge regarding any material changes which could affect the Purpose or administration of 
the grant, including but not limited to the following:  

(a) change in Grantee’s tax-exempt status;
(b) Grantee’s inability to expend the grant funds for the Purpose;
(c) any expenditure from grant funds not made in furtherance of the Purpose;
(d) any change in organizational leadership;
(e) any change in leadership of the project for which funds were granted, if appropriate;
(f) change in 20 percent or more of board members;
(g) any change in address or contact information; or
(h) any adverse event which may affect ongoing operations.

DUE AUTHORITY: The person(s) signing this Agreement on behalf of Grantee represents and warrants 
to the Foundation that s/he is a duly authorized officer of Grantee and has requisite legal power and 
authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of Grantee and bind Grantee to the obligations herein.  

Page 42

DRAFT



Page 6 

By execution below, you agree to be subject to this Agreement in its entirety, specifically including the 
OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS as listed in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part of this 
Agreement.  

Very truly yours, 

Ann B. Stern 
President and CEO 

Accepted and Agreed: 

By:  _____________________________ 
Name 

_____________________________ 
Signature 

_____________________________ 
Title 

_____________________________ 
Acceptance Date 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and date on 
page 1 of this Agreement.  

Page 43

DRAFT



Page 7 

EXHIBIT A 

OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

1. These Other Terms and Conditions shall supplement those terms and conditions above.

2. USE OF FUNDS: If a Restricted Grant, this grant is made only for the Purpose stated in this Agreement.
Grantee agrees to obtain the Foundation’s prior approval in writing should there be any material
changes or variances to the Purpose or the approved budget, at any point during the course of this grant. 
Furthermore, Grantee agrees to keep financial and other records to adequately document that the funds 
were used exclusively for the grant’s Purpose. Grantee agrees to supply the Foundation with such
information as the Foundation may request to review the use of these grant funds and their effect upon
the public charity status of Grantee.

Grantee confirms that this project is under its complete control.  Grantee further confirms that it has
and will exercise control over the process of selecting any subcontractor or consultant, that the decision
made or that will be made on any such selection is completely independent of the Foundation and that
there does not exist an agreement, written or oral, under which the Foundation has caused or may cause 
the selection of a subcontractor or consultant.

3. LIMITATIONS ON USE OF FUNDS:

(a) In connection with the activities to be funded under this grant, Grantee acknowledges that it is
responsible for complying with all relevant laws and regulations related to such activities.

(b) Grantee hereby agrees not to use the grant funds for any purpose prohibited by law, including those 
purposes specified in Section 4945 of the Internal Revenue Code. Furthermore, Grantee
acknowledges grant funds have not been earmarked by the Foundation to (i) carry on propaganda,
(ii) lobby or (iii) otherwise attempt to influence legislation or to conduct any activities described in
Sections 4945(d) and (e) of the United States Internal Revenue Code and the Treasury Regulations
thereunder. Grantee confirms it will not use any of the funds to intervene for or in opposition to a
candidate for elective public office or to carry on a voter registration drive not permitted under
4945(f).  Further questions regarding impermissible activities should be directed to Grantee's tax
or legal advisor.

(c) Grantee agrees that Foundation grant funds will be used in compliance with all applicable anti-
terrorist financing and asset control laws, regulations, rules and executive orders, including but not
limited to the USA Patriot Act of 2001 and Executive Order No. 13224.

4. RECORDS/RIGHT TO AUDIT: Grantee shall maintain an accurate record of the grant received and
all expenses incurred under this grant. Furthermore, at the request of the Foundation, Grantee shall

Page 44

DRAFT



 

Page 8 
 

permit reasonable access to its files, records, and personnel by the Foundation (or its designated 
representative) for the purpose of making financial audits, evaluations or verifications, program 
evaluations, or other verifications concerning this grant as the Foundation deems necessary.  

 

5. U.S. TAX STATUS: By countersigning this agreement, Grantee confirms and warrants that (i) it 
currently is a public charity described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code other than as described in 
Chapter 26 of the Code of Federal Regulations Section 1.509(a)-4(i)(5) and has received its Section 
501(c)(3) determination from the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) or a governmental unit 
described in Section 170(c) of the Code (not a private foundation or a private operating foundation), 
and (ii) receipt of this grant will not adversely affect Grantee’s current status as a public charity, as 
defined in Sections 509(a)(1) or 509(a)(2) of the Code, as applicable, by causing it to fail to satisfy one 
of the public support tests under Treas. Reg. 1.509(a)-3.   

Grantee agrees to notify the Foundation immediately with any information if Grantee’s determination 
or status under the Code is revoked or modified during the course of this grant. No payment hereunder 
shall be required to be made at any time following such revocation or modification.  Grantee 
acknowledges that (a) any questions or concerns regarding its tax status or the impact of this grant on 
its tax status should be directed to Grantee's tax or legal advisor, and (b) Grantee has not relied (and 
will not rely) on the Foundation or its directors, officers, employees, or agents for legal or tax advice. 

6. AMENDMENT: This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by written agreement 
executed by both parties.  
 

7. CONFIDENTIALITY: Grantee agrees it will use any information deemed confidential by the 
Foundation solely in furtherance of the Purpose. 

 
8. NO ASSIGNMENT: Grantee may not assign or otherwise transfer its rights or delegate any of its 

obligations under this grant without prior written approval from the Foundation. 
 
9. NO FURTHER COMMITMENT FOR FUNDING: Grantee acknowledges that the receipt of this 

grant does not imply a commitment on behalf of the Foundation to continue funding beyond the terms 
listed in this Agreement.  

 

10. GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas without 
regard to the conflict of laws provisions thereof, regardless of the place of execution or performance.  

 
Any legal proceeding brought in connection with disputes relating to or arising out of this Agreement 
will be filed and heard in Harris County, Texas, and each party waives any objection that it might raise 
to venue as inconvenient.  
 

Page 45

DRAFT



Page 9 

11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: In the event of any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement arising from
or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, the parties shall use their best efforts to settle the
dispute, claim, question, or disagreement. To this effect, they shall consult and negotiate with each other 
in good faith and, recognizing their mutual interests, attempt to reach a just and equitable solution
satisfactory to both parties.

If the dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle
the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association (AAA) before
resorting to arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure. The AAA will choose a
mediator within seven (7) days from referral of the matter to AAA and payment of AAA fees.  The
mediator shall be an experienced practicing attorney who has no conflicts of interest. All expenses shall
be divided equally between the parties. Mediation shall be conducted within thirty (30) days after
appointment of the mediator and is to be completed over no more than two business days, unless
otherwise mutually agreed upon. All procedures shall be set by the mediator. The results of mediation
are non-binding, advisory, and confidential, and the mediator’s recommendations, as well as the
written or oral evidence produced from mediation, shall not be admissible for any purpose for or against 
the parties in any later alternative dispute resolution, administrative or legal proceeding.

12. INDEMNIFICATION: Grantee shall defend, indemnify, and hold the Foundation, its directors,
officers, employees, and agents harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees), or claims for injury or damages arising out of its performance of this
Agreement but only in proportion to and to the extent such liability, loss, expenses, attorneys’ fees, or
claims for injury or damages are caused by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions
of Grantee, its officers, agents, or employees.

13. NO WAIVER: Failure of the Foundation to exercise any rights in this Agreement does not waive any
right in this Agreement by the Foundation.

14. SURVIVAL: Any provisions of the Agreement that by their nature extend beyond termination will
remain in effect in accordance with their terms.  Without limitation, the following sections of these
Other Terms and Conditions shall survive expiration or termination of the Agreement: 2, 3, 4, 7, 10, 11,
and 12.

15. HEADINGS: The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not intended,
and shall not be construed, to alter, limit or enlarge in any way the scope or meaning of the language
contained in this Agreement.

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement represents the entire agreement between Grantee and the
Foundation with respect to the subject matter herein and supersedes any and all prior agreements,
understandings, negotiations, representations and discussions with respect thereto.  This Agreement
may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Page 46

DRAFT



                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MIDTOWN AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
PROGRAM 

Page 47

DRAFT



Database: NAIPARTNERS Budgeting and Forecasting Detail Proforma Page:
Report: BF_PROFORMD COMMDIS For Budget Date: 4/11/2022
Entity: Midtown Redevelopment Authority NAI Partners Time: 6:08 PM
  2022 ‐ 3130 ‐ Original

01/22 02/22 03/22 04/22 05/22 06/22 07/22 08/22 09/22 10/22 11/22 12/22 Total

Income

4700     Base Rent 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 66,328 66,328 71,175 321,628
‐ Primary Care Cohort 2 Propco, LLC (RNT) 3130‐1 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,481 157,456
‐ GSD (RNT) 3130‐210 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,462 1,462 1,462 4,386
‐ TRIZ (RNT) 3130‐225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,501 6,501 6,501 19,503
‐ Prospect 275 (RNT) 3130‐275 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,455 4,455
‐ Prospect 300 (RNT) 3130‐300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22,096 22,096 22,096 66,287
‐ Prospect 425 (RNT) 3130‐400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23,181 23,181 23,181 69,542
Base Rent 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 13,089 66,328 66,328 71,175 321,628

Expense Recovery 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 42,751 42,751 45,503 220,600
‐ Primary Care Cohort 2 Propco, LLC (RNT) 3130‐1 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 119,460
‐ GSD (RNT) 3130‐210 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 903 903 903 2,709
‐ TRIZ (RNT) 3130‐225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,016 4,016 4,016 12,048
‐ Prospect 275 (RNT) 3130‐275 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,752 2,752
‐ Prospect 300 (RNT) 3130‐300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,605 13,605 13,605 40,814
‐ Prospect 425 (RNT) 3130‐400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,273 14,273 14,273 42,818
Total Expense Recovery 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 9,955 42,751 42,751 45,503 220,600
Total Rental Income 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,044 31,792 45,752 55,468 75,773 393,134

Other Income ‐ Parking 0 0 0 0 0 805 805 805 805 4,255 4,255 4,800 16,530
‐ Primary Care Cohort 2 Propco, LLC (RNT) 3130‐1 0 0 0 0 0 805 805 805 805 805 805 1055 5885
‐ GSD (RNT) 3130‐210 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 120 120 120 360
‐ TRIZ (RNT) 3130‐225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 450 450 450 1350
‐ Prospect 275 (RNT) 3130‐275 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 295 295
‐ Prospect 300 (RNT) 3130‐300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1405 1405 1405 4215
‐ Prospect 425 (RNT) 3130‐400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1475 1475 1475 4425
Total Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 805 805 805 805 4,255 4,255 4,800 16,530
Total Income 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,044 23,849 23,849 23,849 32,597 50,007 59,723 80,573 409,664

Operating Expenses

Payroll & Benefits
5000     Management‐Salaries 2,375 2,375 2,375 2,375 2,375 2,375 4,950 4,950 4,950 4,950 4,950 4,950 43,950
5011     Bldg. Engineer‐Salaries 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 4,443 53,316
5025     Payroll Taxes & Benefits 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 1,505 18,060
Total Payroll & Benefits 8,323 8,323 8,323 8,323 8,323 8,323 10,898 10,898 10,898 10,898 10,898 10,898 115,326

Page 48

DRAFT



Database: NAIPARTNERS Budgeting and Forecasting Detail Proforma Page:
Report: BF_PROFORMD COMMDIS For Budget Date: 4/11/2022
Entity: Midtown Redevelopment Authority NAI Partners Time: 6:08 PM
  2022 ‐ 3130 ‐ Original

01/22 02/22 03/22 04/22 05/22 06/22 07/22 08/22 09/22 10/22 11/22 12/22 Total

General Maintenance Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance
5115     Building ‐Exterior 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
5150     HVAC Supplies & R/M 0 700 1,100 700 700 1,100 700 700 1,100 700 700 1,100 9,300
3130 ‐ Filters ‐ Monthly RTU 0 700 700 700 700 700 700 700 700 700 700 700 7,700
3130 ‐ Filters ‐ Quarterly VAV 0 0 400 0 0 400 0 0 400 0 0 400 1,600
5157     Janitorial Supplies 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 305 377 415 477 2,974
3130 ‐ Flat Rate until 25K SF occupancy 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 175 0 0 0 0 1,400
3130 ‐ Over 25K SF @ $0.012 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 305 377 415 477 1,574
5165     Maintenance Supplies 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 600
3130 ‐ Contingency 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 600
5166     Small Tools & Equipment 0 50 0 0 50 0 3,000 50 0 0 50 0 3,200
3130 ‐ Office start up set & Contingency 0 50 0 0 50 0 3,000 50 0 0 50 0 3,200
5188     Irrigation/Landscape Rprs 0 400 0 0 400 0 0 400 0 0 400 0 1,600
3130 ‐ Allowance for 1 repair/quarter 0 400 0 0 400 0 0 400 0 0 400 0 1,600
5190     Window / Glass Repair 0 0 2,000 0 0 2,000 0 0 2,000 0 0 2,000 8,000
3130 ‐ Allowance for 1 window/quarter 0 0 2,000 0 0 2,000 0 0 2,000 0 0 2,000 8,000
5191     Window Washing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 6,000
5195     Misc. Repairs/Maintenance 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 600
3130 ‐ Contingency 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 600
Total Repairs & Maintenance 775 1,925 3,875 1,475 1,925 3,875 4,475 7,925 4,005 1,677 2,165 4,177 38,274

Garage Expenses
5491     Garage‐Management Fee 0 0 0 0 7,665 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 36,820
3130 ‐ Per proposed agreement 0 0 0 0 7,665 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 36,820
Total Garage Expenses 0 0 0 0 7,665 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 4,165 36,820

Contract Services
5500     Access Monitoring Contrac 165 165 165 165 165 165 165 165 165 165 165 165 1,980
5515     HVAC Contract 0 0 0 2,600 0 0 2,600 0 0 2,600 0 0 7,800
3130 ‐ PM Service Contract 0 0 0 2,600 0 0 2,600 0 0 2,600 0 0 7,800
5520     Elevator Contract 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 28,032
3130 ‐ KONE bid 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 2,336 28,032
5521     Fire Alarm Monitoring 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,000
3130 ‐ CLS/ADT Annual charge 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,000
5526     Janitorial Contract 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,604 1,981 2,180 2,507 21,872
3130 ‐ Flat Rate until 25K SF occupancy 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 0 0 0 0 13,600
3130 ‐ Over 25K SF @ $0.063 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,604 1,981 2,180 2,507 8,272

Page 49

DRAFT



Database: NAIPARTNERS Budgeting and Forecasting Detail Proforma Page:
Report: BF_PROFORMD COMMDIS For Budget Date: 4/11/2022
Entity: Midtown Redevelopment Authority NAI Partners Time: 6:08 PM
  2022 ‐ 3130 ‐ Original

01/22 02/22 03/22 04/22 05/22 06/22 07/22 08/22 09/22 10/22 11/22 12/22 Total

5535     Landscape Maintenance 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 7,800
5536     Landscape ‐Seasonal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,500 0 1,500
5542     Parking Lot Sweeping Cont 0 0 0 0 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 2,800
5545     Security/Patrol/Courtesy 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 13,140 157,680
3130 ‐ After hours service to achieve 4/7/365 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 10,107 121,280
3130 ‐ Guard Service 8 hours 5 days/week 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 3,033 36,400
5550     Pest Control Contract 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 85 1,020
5554     Porter Contract Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,080 2,080 2,080 2,080 2,080 10,400
3130 ‐ Service at 50% occupancy at 6 hours daily 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,080 2,080 2,080 2,080 2,080 10,400
5560     Trash Removal Contract 732 0 0 732 0 0 732 0 0 732 0 0 2,928
3130 ‐ Nightly hauling 732 0 0 732 0 0 732 0 0 732 0 0 2,928
5580     Fire Alarm Contract 0 720 0 0 1,100 0 0 350 0 0 350 0 2,520
3130 ‐ Annual Fire Alarm/Extenguisher 0 720 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 720
3130 ‐ Fire Pump backflow 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100
3130 ‐ Fire Sprinkler Inspection 0 0 0 0 650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 650
3130 ‐ Quarterly Inspection 0 0 0 0 350 0 0 350 0 0 350 0 1,050
Total Contract Services 18,808 18,796 18,076 21,408 19,526 18,426 22,758 20,856 20,410 24,119 22,836 21,313 247,332
Total General Maintenance Expense 19,583 20,721 21,951 22,883 29,116 26,466 31,398 32,946 28,580 29,961 29,166 29,655 322,426

General & Administrative

Office Expense
5705     Copy Machine Contract 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 30 30 30 30 30 180
5730     Office Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 30 30 30 30 150
Total Office Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 60 60 60 60 60 330

Other General & Administrative
5810     Bank Fees 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 600
5816     Internet Access/Data Proc 941 941 941 1,041 1,041 1,041 1,041 1,041 1,041 1,041 1,041 1,041 12,192
3130 ‐ Comcast 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 6,600
3130 ‐ IMPAK Work Order System 0 0 0 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 900
3130 ‐ MRI Accounting Software 391 391 391 391 391 391 391 391 391 391 391 391 4,692
5835     Licenses/Fees/Permits 0 200 300 0 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000
3130 ‐ COH Annual Elevator Permit 0 0 0 0 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 150
3130 ‐ COH Annual Fire Alarm Permit 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200
3130 ‐ COH Annual Sign Permit 0 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300
3130 ‐ Elevator Inspector Fee 0 0 0 0 0 350 0 0 0 0 0 0 350
5850     Travel Expense 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 600
5860     Uniform 0 0 0 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300
Total Other General/Admin 1,041 1,241 1,341 1,141 1,441 1,641 1,141 1,141 1,141 1,141 1,141 1,141 14,692
Total General & Administrative 1,041 1,241 1,341 1,141 1,441 1,641 1,171 1,201 1,201 1,201 1,201 1,201 15,022

Page 50

DRAFT



Database: NAIPARTNERS Budgeting and Forecasting Detail Proforma Page:
Report: BF_PROFORMD COMMDIS For Budget Date: 4/11/2022
Entity: Midtown Redevelopment Authority NAI Partners Time: 6:08 PM
  2022 ‐ 3130 ‐ Original

01/22 02/22 03/22 04/22 05/22 06/22 07/22 08/22 09/22 10/22 11/22 12/22 Total

Utilities
5900     Electric 1,100 1,700 3,000 4,000 4,500 4,500 5,500 8,000 9,000 9,500 9,500 9,500 69,800
5925     Water / Sewer 1,000 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 14,200
5926     Water Irrigation 500 500 500 500 500 600 700 700 700 600 500 500 6,800
Total Utilities 2,600 3,400 4,700 5,700 6,200 6,300 7,400 9,900 10,900 11,300 11,200 11,200 90,800

Management Fees
6000     Management Fees 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 42,000
‐ BF Management Fees 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 42,000
Total Management Fees 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 42,000

Taxes

Total Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Property Insurance
6200     Property Insurance 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 104,892
Total Property Insurance 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 8,741 104,892

Total Operating Expenses 43,788 45,926 48,556 50,288 57,321 54,971 63,108 67,186 63,820 65,601 64,706 65,195 690,466

Net Operating Income ‐20,744 ‐22,882 ‐25,512 ‐27,244 ‐34,277 ‐31,122 ‐39,259 ‐43,337 ‐31,223 ‐15,594 ‐4,983 15,378 ‐280,802

Non‐Operating Expenses

Non‐Recoverable Expenses
Total Non‐Recoverable Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Leasing Expenses
8105     Architectural/Space Plan 0 0 0 1,574 0 3,410 0 0 0 208 0 152 5,344
3130 ‐ Building systems 0 0 0 1,574 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,574
3130 ‐ Suite 275 Prospect 275 Space Plan 0 0 0 0 0 306 0 0 0 0 0 0 306
3130 ‐ Suite 300 Prospect 300 Space Plan 0 0 0 0 0 1,515 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,515
3130 ‐ Suite 400 Prospect 400 Space Plan 0 0 0 0 0 1,589 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,589
3130 ‐ Suite 550 Prospect 550 Space PLan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 208 0 0 208
3130 ‐ Suite 575 Prospect 575 Space Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 152 152
Total Leasing Expense 0 0 0 1,574 0 3,410 0 0 0 208 0 152 5,344

Page 51

DRAFT



Database: NAIPARTNERS Budgeting and Forecasting Detail Proforma Page:
Report: BF_PROFORMD COMMDIS For Budget Date: 4/11/2022
Entity: Midtown Redevelopment Authority NAI Partners Time: 6:08 PM
  2022 ‐ 3130 ‐ Original

01/22 02/22 03/22 04/22 05/22 06/22 07/22 08/22 09/22 10/22 11/22 12/22 Total

Interest Expense
Total Interest Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Partnership Expenses
Total Partnership Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amortization and Depreciation
Total Amortization and Depreciation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Non‐Operating Expenses 0 0 0 1,574 0 3,410 0 0 0 208 0 152 5,344

Net Income ‐20,744 ‐22,882 ‐25,512 ‐28,818 ‐34,277 ‐34,532 ‐39,259 ‐43,337 ‐31,223 ‐15,802 ‐4,983 15,226 ‐286,146

Capitalized Expenditures
1520     Building Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 209,275 0 0 0 0 209,275
3130 ‐ Suite 200 Community Room 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 78,265 0 0 0 0 78,265
3130 ‐ Suite 500 View Room 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 131,010 0 0 0 0 131,010
1526     Tenant Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 512,325 0 1,563,430 0 0 2,075,755
3130 ‐ Suite 210 GSD TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,090 0 0 0 0 46,090
3130 ‐ Suite 225 TIRZ TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 204,985 0 0 0 0 204,985
3130 ‐ Suite 250 CCPPI TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 170,170 0 0 0 0 170,170
3130 ‐ Suite 275 Prospect 275 TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 140,470 0 0 140,470
3130 ‐ Suite 300 Prospect 300 TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 694,430 0 0 694,430
3130 ‐ Suite 400 Prospect 400 TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 728,530 0 0 728,530
3130 ‐ Suite 525 CCPPI Founder TI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 91,080 0 0 0 0 91,080
1785     Construction Mgmt Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,080 0 63,942 0 0 100,022
3130 ‐ CCPP! & Buildin Rooms CM Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,080 0 0 0 0 36,080
3130 ‐ Suite 275 Prospect 275 CM Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,024 0 0 7,024
3130 ‐ Suite 300 Prospect 300 CM Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27,777 0 0 27,777
3130 ‐ Suite 400 Prospect 400 CM Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29,141 0 0 29,141
1888     Cap‐Lease Commissions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,080 0 63,942 0 0 100,022
3130 ‐ Suite 210 GSD Commission 0 0 0 1,291 0 0 0 1,291 0 0 0 0 2,581
3130 ‐ Suite 225 TIRZ Commission 0 0 0 5,740 0 0 0 5,740 0 0 0 0 11,479
3130 ‐ Suite 275 Prospect 275 Commission 0 0 0 0 0 3,933 0 0 0 3,933 0 0 7,866
3130 ‐ Suite 300 Prospect 300 Commission 0 0 0 0 36,457 0 0 0 0 0 36,457 0 7,566
3130 ‐ Suite 400 Prospect 400 Commission 0 0 0 0 38,247 0 0 0 0 0 38,247 0 20,836
Total Capitalized Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 793,760 0 1,691,314 0 0 2,485,074

Page 52

DRAFT



Page 53

DRAFT



Page 54

DRAFT



Page 55

DRAFT



Page 56

DRAFT



Page 57

DRAFT



Page 58

DRAFT



Page 59

DRAFT



Page 60

DRAFT



Page 61

DRAFT



Page 62

DRAFT



Page 63

DRAFT



Page 64

DRAFT



Page 65

DRAFT



Page 66

DRAFT



Page 67

DRAFT



Account History
Date of Report: 1/18/2022

Owner and Subject Property Information

Account Number: 0691050010007 CAD: Harris

Owner Name: MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Site Address:
4518 GRIGGS RD
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77021

Mailing Address:
410 PIERCE ST STE 355
HOUSTON, TX 77002-8722

Legal Description:
LTS 7 8 9 & 10 & TRS 1A THRU 6A & 32 BLK
1 SOUTHERN VILLAGE SEC 1

Land Use Code: 4373 Land Use Desc: Retail Single-Occupancy

Land Area Gross Area NRA Bldg Class Grade
NBHD/Econ

Area
Key Map Year Built

23,418 SF 9,160 SF - E D 2 533M 1950

Value
2021 2020 2019 2018

Value PSF Value PSF Value PSF Value PSF

Prelim Land $160,000 $6.83       

Prelim Impr $5,000 $0.55       

Prelim Market $165,000 $18.01       

Prelim Appr $160,000 $17.47       

Final Land $270,000 $11.53       

Final Impr $5,000 $0.55       

Final Market $275,000 $30.02       

Final Appr $275,000 $30.02       

Hearing Date         

Hearing Code         

Prelim %
Increase

        

Final %
Increase

        

% Reduction         

Public Note:  

Page 1

Page 68

DRAFT



2021 Appeal Summary 
Effective Date of Value: 1/1/2021

Date of Report: 1/18/2022

Owner and Subject Property Information 

Account Number: 0691050010007 CAD: Harris

Owner Name:
MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY

Property Address:
4518 GRIGGS RD
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77021

Mailing Address:
410 PIERCE ST STE 355
HOUSTON, TX 77002-8722 Legal Description:

LTS 7 8 9 & 10 & TRS 1A THRU 6A 
& 32 BLK 1 SOUTHERN VILLAGE 
SEC 1 

Land Use Code: 4373 Land Use 
Description:

Retail Single-Occupancy

Land Area Total Bldg Area
NetRentable 

Area
Bldg Class Econ Area Key Map Year Built

23,418 SF 9,160 SF - E 2 533M 1950

Value Assessment Summary 

  Land Improvement
Improvement 

PSF
Extra 

Features
Impr 

Adjustments
Market Value

Appraised 
Value

HCAD Market 
Value:

$160,000 $5,000 $0.55 $7,760 - $165,000 $160,000

U&E / Sales $160,000 $183,108 $19.99 $7,760 $0 $350,868  

Uniform and Equal Value (Based on 3 Adjusted U&E Comparables) - Needed Repairs: $350,868  

Page 2

Page 69

DRAFT



Owner Name: 
MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY Address: 4518 GRIGGS RD

Account Number: 0691050010007  HOUSTON, TX 77021

Commercial Uniform & Equal Tax Comparable Property Analysis "Adjusted"

 
Address Econ Area Impr sqft Impr Value Bldg Class Impr $/sqft Adj Impr $/sqft

Acct # Effective Year NRA Land Value Extra Value Market Value
Adj Market 

Value

Sub
4518 GRIGGS RD 2 9,160 $5,000 E $0.55 -
0691050010007 1950 - $160,000 $7,760 $165,000 -

A
4519 GRIGGS RD 2 30,688 $228,962 C $8.44 $5.56
0410070160018 1995 27,115 $1,925,565 $116,700 $2,271,227 $218,690

B
4566 GRIGGS RD 2 3,800 $103,142 E $27.14 $19.99
0691050010030 1973 - $34,560 $7,356 $145,058 $350,868

C
4578 GRIGGS RD 2 3,445 $93,484 E $27.14 $25.77
0691050010031 1945 - $46,350 $5,243 $145,077 $403,813

Median Adjusted Uniform & Equal Impr $/sqft:  $19.99
Subject Uniform & Equal Impr Value at Median Impr $/sqft:  $183,108

Subject Extra Features Value:  $7,760
Subject Land Value:  $160,000

Subject Uniform & Equal Market Value:  $350,868

Page 3

Page 70

DRAFT



 

Commercial Uniform & Equal Tax Comparable Adjustment Detail

  Address Impr $/sqft
Size Adj 

$/sqft
Class Adj 

$/sqft
Age Adj 

$/sqft
Adj Impr 

$/sqft
Adj Ratio

Adj Market 
Value

A 4519 GRIGGS RD $8.44 $0.66 $0.00 ($3.54) $5.56 49.76% $218,690
B 4566 GRIGGS RD $27.14 ($1.72) $0.00 ($5.43) $19.99 26.34% $350,868
C 4578 GRIGGS RD $27.14 ($1.91) $0.00 $0.54 $25.77 9.03% $403,813

Age Adjustment 1% per year after 3 years 

Impr Size Adjustment 5% for every doubling of area 

Class Adjustment 10% per Class difference 

Comments
According to section 42.26(3) of the Texas Property Tax Code, median value was 
determined by a sample of properties in the appraisal district consisting of a 
reasonable number of comparable properties similarly situated to, or the same 
general kind of character as the subject to the appeal, properly adjusted for 
dissimilarities. 

Page 4

Page 71

DRAFT



 

Page 5

Page 72

DRAFT



Page 73

DRAFT



Page 74

DRAFT



Page 75

DRAFT



Page 76

DRAFT



Page 77

DRAFT



Page 78

DRAFT



Page 79

DRAFT



Page 80

DRAFT



Page 81

DRAFT



Page 82

DRAFT



Page 83

DRAFT



Page 84

DRAFT



Page 85

DRAFT



Page 86

DRAFT



Page 87

DRAFT



Page 88

DRAFT



Page 89

DRAFT



Page 90

DRAFT



Page 91

DRAFT



Page 92

DRAFT



Page 93

DRAFT



Page 94

DRAFT



Page 95

DRAFT



Page 96

DRAFT



Page 97

DRAFT



Page 98

DRAFT



Page 99

DRAFT



Page 100

DRAFT



Page 101

DRAFT



Page 102

DRAFT



Page 103

DRAFT



Page 104

DRAFT



Page 105

DRAFT



Page 106

DRAFT



Page 107

DRAFT



Page 108

DRAFT



Page 109

DRAFT



Page 110

DRAFT



Page 111

DRAFT



Page 112

DRAFT



Page 113

DRAFT



Page 114

DRAFT



Page 115

DRAFT



Page 116

DRAFT



Page 117

DRAFT



Page 118

DRAFT



Page 119

DRAFT



Page 120

DRAFT



Page 121

DRAFT



Page 122

DRAFT



Page 123

DRAFT



Page 124

DRAFT



Page 125

DRAFT



Page 126

DRAFT



Page 127

DRAFT



Page 128

DRAFT



Page 129

DRAFT



Page 130

DRAFT



Page 131

DRAFT



Page 132

DRAFT



Page 133

DRAFT



Page 134

DRAFT



Page 135

DRAFT



Page 136

DRAFT



Page 137

DRAFT



Page 138

DRAFT



Page 139

DRAFT



Page 140

DRAFT



Page 141

DRAFT



Page 142

DRAFT



                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MIDTOWN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROGRAM 

Page 143

DRAFT



Midtown Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ #2 Board Meeting – June 30, 2022 
Marlon Marshall 

Capital Improvements Program 
 
Baldwin Park  
 

- Baldwin Park Improvements Project includes installation of  playground equipment, perimeter 
lighting, electrical inf rastructure, and expansion of  the detention pond in the park.   

- Installation of  new playground equipment and fall surface has been completed; playground 
will be opened to public in July.  

- Light poles and f ixtures installation will begin in late July pending delivery of  materials 
delayed due to supply chain issues.  

- The park will remain open during project; however, access to the playground area and 
construction zones will be restricted during the project.   

- Project completion expected in August 2022.   
 

Change Orders 
 

- CO #2 – Installation of  8" mitered grate at detention pond outfall  
o Amount: $862.40 

 
Construction Contract Budget 
 
- Original Contract Amount: $463,558.31 
- Net Change Orders: $45,567.17 
- Contract Amount to Date: $509,125.48 

 
Caroline Street Reconstruction 
 

- Contractor continues installation of  pavers, rain garden amenities, and streetscape amenities 
(trash receptacles, bike racks, signage, seating) along corridor. 

- Ongoing coordination with utility companies to resolve remaining conf licts with sidewalk and 
intersection ramp installations. 

- Upcoming work includes installation of  signage and pavement markings. 
 

Construction Contract Budget 
 

- Original Contract Amount: $12,380,276.54 
- Net Change Orders (including TxDOT fee): $1,657,335.22  
- Contract Amount to Date: $14,037,611.76 
- Change Order Time Adjustment Total – 173 days 

 
Caroline/Wheeler Deck Park  
 

- Proposal f rom OJB Landscape Architecture for development of  conceptual design for 
Caroline/Wheeler Deck Park as part of  North Houston Highway Improvement Project (NHHIP). 

- Coordination with TxDOT and their consultants (HNTB) to determine design feasibility. 
- Accelerated schedule to advance the programming phase through concept design to meet 

TxDOT project requirements. 
 
Wheeler Street Corridor - FTA Grant  
 

- Proposal f rom The Goodman Corporation for management of  $1.2M Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) Grant to improve pedestrian-transit access within ½ mile of  the Wheeler 
Street corridor.  

- Identif ication and development of  concepts for eligible pedestrian-transit-bicycle improvements. 
- Completion of  required DBE program goal update. 

Page 144

DRAFT



Landscape Art, Inc.
2303 Dickinson Avenue
League City, Texas 77573
Phone: (281) 309-0500

Project: 4814 - Baldwin Park
1701 Elgin St.

Houston, Texas 77004

DRAFT
Prime Contract Potential Change Order #002: 8" Mitered Grate

TO: Midtown Development Authority
410 Pierce, Suite 355
Houston, Texas 77002

FROM: Landscape Art, Inc.
2303 Dickinson Ave
League City, Texas 77573

PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 002 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Baldwin Park Improvements

REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:   CREATED BY: Karen Orellana (Landscape Art, Inc.)
STATUS: Draft CREATED DATE: 5/11/2022

REFERENCE: PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:

None

FIELD CHANGE: Yes CHANGE
ORDER REQUEST:

None

LOCATION: ACCOUNTING METHOD: Amount Based

SCHEDULE IMPACT: PAID IN FULL: No

EXECUTED: No SIGNED CHANGE ORDER
RECEIVED DATE:
TOTAL AMOUNT: $862.40

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: 8" Mitered Grate

CHANGE REASON: Existing Condition

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)

ATTACHMENTS:

# Budget Code Description Amount
1 O Other 8" Mitered Grate $862.40

Grand Total: $862.40

Walter P. Moore and Associates, Inc. Midtown Development Authority Landscape Art, Inc.
410 Pierce, Suite 355 2303 Dickinson Ave

  Houston, Texas 77002 League City, Texas 77573

ProcoreArchitectSignHere ProcoreArchitectSignedDate ProcoreOwnerSignHere ProcoreOwnerSignedDate ProcoreGeneralContractorSignHere ProcoreGeneralContractorSignedDate

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

Landscape Art, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Printed On: 5/11/2022  01:55 PM

   

PCO #002
Page 145

DRAFT



5/11/22, 2:17 PM 8" PVC C900 CL150 Mitered Drain w/Gray HDPE Grate - The Drainage Products Store

https://drainageproducts.us/8-pvc-c900-cl150-mitered-drain-w-gray-hdpe-grate/ 1/5

Mitered Drain

$499.00

(No reviews yet) Write a Review

8MD3P

Usually Ships in 24 Hours

Home Catch Basins & Grates Mitered Drains 8" PVC C900 CL150 Mitered Drain w/Gray HDPE Grate/ / /

(317) 346-4110

CART 1

We use cookies (and other similar technologies) to collect data to improve your shopping experience.

Settings Reject all Accept All Cookies

Page 146

DRAFT



Page 147

DRAFT



Glover Park - Construction Management Services include: 
 
 
All deliverables will be reviewed by the reviewers assigned for the various disciplines as 
defined in the Project QA Plan and QC checklists.  In addition, all deliverables must be 
reviewed and approved by the Project Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Processing of product submittals, laboratory, shop, and mill tests of material and 
equipment for general conformity with Construction Document requirements and 
report to the Owner in writing on such matters.  

 
2. Processing of all Request For Information (RFI) and maintain a log of all such 

documents for the duration of the construction process.  
 

3. Establish and Maintain Document Control (Filing) System to include all records, 
certificates, guarantees, warranties and releases required from the construction 
contractor(s). Maintain an all-inclusive file for transmittal to the Owner at the 
completion of the Project.  

 
4. Prepare and distribute as required, monthly status reports to include budget 

information, current estimates of Construction Cost and schedule, obligations and 
action items required, status of change orders, anticipated change orders, 
expenditures and estimated cost at completion, contractor payment reports, and 
other information necessary to define the current Project status.  
 

5. Maintain a record of all field orders, directives, time extensions, and requests for 
information, proposals, and change orders.  

 
6. Provide on-site observation of the progress and quality of work for the construction 

contract. Advise the Owner of any observed deviations from the Construction 
Documents in a timely manner so as to minimize delay in the progress of the work. 
3 DM-#8019660.2  

 
7. Inspect and observe the construction contractor’s activities to verify that the work 

complies with the Construction Documents for the Project. Notify the Owner if the 
construction contractor’s work is not in compliance with Construction Documents 
including all addendums and change orders and notify the Owner of any failure of 
the construction contractor to take measures to place such work in compliance.  

 
8. Inspect and observe the materials and equipment being incorporated into the work 

to assure that they are handled, stored and installed properly and adequately and 
are in compliance with the Construction Documents for the Project.  

Page 148

DRAFT



 
9. Identify problems encountered in accomplishing the work and recommend the 

appropriate action to the Owner for resolution of problems to minimize impact on 
timely completion of the Project.  

 
10. Attend and participate in meetings with the Owner and the construction 

contractor(s) when requested by the Owner.  
 

11. Maintain a daily progress report to record work performed and significant job 
events.  

 
12. Assemble and maintain notes, comments, sketches, and supportive data relative 

to the Project in order to facilitate the revisions of tracings to conform to the 
construction records. Provide a copy of the daily progress reports to the Owner.  

 
13. Verify the quantities contained in the construction contractor’s pay request and 

make recommendations to the Owner regarding payment of periodic and final 
requests for payment.  

 
14. Administer the testing laboratory contract(s). Monitor the required testing to assure 

that sufficient testing is performed, secure and distribute (or cause to be 
distributed) information from the testing laboratories to the Owner regarding 
necessary field and laboratory tests and review the results of such tests with the 
Owner for compliance with the Construction Documents for the Project, assisting 
the Owner when necessary. 

 

Page 149

DRAFT



 

 
June 28, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Marlon Marshall 
Midtown Redevelopment Authority 
410 Pierce Street, Suite 355 
Houston, Texas 77002 
 
Re: Construction Materials Engineering and Testing Services 
 Midtown Park Front 90 Plaza and Garage Improvements 
 HVJ No. HC2110102.1 
 
Dear Mr. Marshall, 
 
Thank you for selecting HVJ Associates, Inc. to provide the construction materials engineering and 
testing services on the above-referenced project. 
 
Based on our review of the project plans and specifications, considering a construction cost of 
$256,604.5 and 120 days of construction schedule, we recommend allocating a budget in the amount 
of $7,500.00 to fulfill the material testing scope for this project. Itemized summary of anticipated 
services along with applicable unit rates is enclosed for your review.  
 
Our services will be billed in accordance with the 2021 City of Houston Fee Schedule for 
Construction Materials Engineering and Testing. The actual cost will be dependent on the 
construction services provided, as we only bill for the actual services performed. Invoicing for our 
services will be submitted monthly. 
 
As the schedule and frequency of requests is beyond our control, we cannot guarantee that the 
estimate provided would be adequate to provide the services needed throughout the entire duration 
of construction of this project. Advance authorization will be needed if additional funds are needed 
to complete the project. We will monitor the budget as the work proceeds and will keep you or your 
designated representative informed. 
 
HVJ Associates, Inc. will begin providing services upon receiving authorization or NTP from 
Midtown Redevelopment Authority. Should you have any questions regarding the contents of this 
letter, please call me at 281-983-8848. 

Sincerely,  

HVJ ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Luis Hernandez, P.E. 
Project Manager - Houston 

Page 150

DRAFT



ITEMIZED SERVICES

PROJECT NAME: Midtown Park Front 90 Plaza and Garage Improvements

CLIENT: Midtown Redevelopment Authority

PROPOSAL NO: HC2110102.1

QTY. UNIT SERVICES UNIT PRICE TOTAL

Soils (Backfill Monitoring, Subgrade Compaction Testing, Utilities Backfill)

Field Services

20 Hour Technician Time for Compaction Testing and Sampling, NICET II 80.00$          1,600.00$              

2 Hour Technician Time for Compaction Testing and Sampling, NICET II (OT) 120.00$        240.00$                 

10 Hour Technician Time for Compaction Testing and Sampling, SB101 & SB102 70.00$          700.00$                 

1 Hour Technician Time for Compaction Testing and Sampling, SB101 & SB102 (OT) 105.00$        105.00$                 

30 Hours Nuclear Density Equipment Usage 10.00$          300.00$                 

30 Hours Vehicle Charge 9.00$           270.00$                 

Subtotal 3,215.00$              

Laboratory Services

1 Each OMD Standard Compaction (ASTM D-698) 221.00$        221.00$                 

1 Each OMD Lime or Cement Stabilized Soil (ASTM D-698, D-558, D-1557) 245.00$        245.00$                 

1 Each Liquid and Plastic Limits (Atterberg Limits) (ASTM D-4318) 68.00$          68.00$                  

1 Each Amount of Material Finer than No. 200 Sieve (ASTM D-1140) 52.00$          52.00$                  

1 Each Compressive Strength of C.S.S. Sample (ASTM D-1632, ASTM D-1633) 69.00$          69.00$                  

Subtotal 655.00$                 

Soils Total 3,870.00$            

Concrete (Pavement and Other Structures)

Field Services

20 Hour Technician Time for Inspection and Concrete Testing, NICET II 80.00$          1,600.00$              

3 Hour Technician Time for Inspection and Concrete Testing, NICET II (OT) 120.00$        360.00$                 

10 Hour Technician Time for Inspection and Concrete Testing, ACI 60.00$          600.00$                 

1 Hour Technician Time for Inspection and Concrete Testing, ACI (OT) 90.00$          90.00$                  

3 Hour Technician Time for Cylinder Pick Up 45.00$          135.00$                 

33 Hours Vehicle Charge 9.00$           297.00$                 

Subtotal 3,082.00$              

Laboratory Services

12 Each Compressive Strength Cylinders (C39) 19.00$          228.00$                 

Subtotal 228.00$                 

Concrete Total 3,310.00$            

Project Management (Project Revier and Site Meeting)

6 Each Engineering Report Review 50.00$          300.00$                 

2 Hour Project Engineer, P.E. 133.00$        266.00$                 

1 Hour Senior Engineer, P.E. 170.00$        170.00$                 

2 Hour Vehicle Charge 9.00$           18.00$                  

Engineering Services Total 377.00$               

Total Estimate for CMET Services 7,557.00$      

410 Pierce Street, Suite 355, Houston, Texas 77002

Page 1 of 1

Page 151

DRAFT



B-1

DM-#8146289.2

ATTACHMENT B 

Form of Work Order 

WORK ORDER NO. ______________ 

This Work Order No. ___ (this “Work Order”) is issued subject to and is governed by that 
certain Professional Services Agreement between Midtown and Consultant dated as of _________, 
20__ (the “PSA”). 

Work Order Date: 

Consultant: . 

Type of Compensation: Cost Plus, Time & Materials, Firm Fixed Price, Lump Sum (Circle and 
set forth price if Firm Fixed Price or Lump Sum)  

Compensation: 

Location of Services: 

Description of Services: 

Schedule Requirements: Commencement of Services: 

Completion of Services: 

Midtown: Consultant: 

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

By: By: 

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title 

Date: Date: 

[End of Attachment B] 

2

2
21 June 2022

1 June 2022

OJB Landscape Architecture

$60,000

Midtown Houston

as part of the larger NHHIP project. Coordinate concepts and schedule with TXDOT

Concept design for a new deck park at Caroline Street and Wheeler Street

1 June 2022

31 July 2022

OJB Landscape Architecture

Tara Green, Principal

27 June 2022

Page 152

DRAFT



Midtown Houston 
Caroline Wheeler 
Deck Park 

 

EXHIBIT B 
Limit of Work Diagram 

Page 153

DRAFT



B-1

DM-#8103510.4

ATTACHMENT B 

Form of Work Order 

WORK ORDER NO. ______________ 

This Work Order No. ___ (this “Work Order”) is issued subject to and is governed by that 
certain Professional Services Agreement between Midtown and Consultant dated as of _________, 
20__ (the “PSA”). 

Work Order Date: 

Consultant: . 

Type of Compensation: Cost Plus, Time & Materials, Firm Fixed Price, Lump Sum (Circle and 
set forth price if Firm Fixed Price or Lump Sum)  

Compensation: 

Location of Services: 

Description of Services: 

Schedule Requirements: Commencement of Services: 

Completion of Services: 

Midtown: Consultant: 

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

By: By: 

Printed Name and Title 

Date: 

[End of Attachment B] 

THE GOODMAN CORPORATION

Jim Webb, CEO
Printed Name and Title Date: 

36/27/2022

The Goodman Corporation

$101,471

Houston, TX
Wheeler area project development and grant management.

Page 154

DRAFT



 

1 

Midtown Redevelopment Authority  
Wheeler Area Project Development and Grant Management  

 

June 2022 - The Goodman Corporation (TGC) has assisted the Midtown Redevelopment Authority in the 

pursuit of $1.2M in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) resources to improve pedestrian-transit access 

within ½ mile of the Wheeler Street corridor. TGC has recently executed this grant with FTA and funds are 

available for expenditure. TGC is providing this task order to complete the following: 

• Provide grant management through the lifecycle of the grant (estimated to be 36 months);  

• Complete the required DBE program goal update for Midtown;  

• Identify projects and bring a preferred project to the City’s Design Concept Review (DCR) 

committee for authorization to proceed and/or complete a full DCR process.  

Task 1 – Wheeler Corridor FTA Compliance and Grants Management Support  

In this task TGC will provide ongoing reporting and compliance activities for the Wheeler Corridor area 

grant, recently obligated in an FTA grant. This task will provide ongoing grant management and reporting 

for this project through the lifecycle of the grant, which is estimated to be 36 months. If the grant remains 

open after this 36-month period TGC may request additional authority to continue compliance and grant 

management activities.  

 

• Provide on-going assistance for compliance through monitoring FTA rulemaking and circular 
updates as they are produced and disseminated.  

• Complete quarterly reporting via the TrAMS (FTA) system.   

• Provide assistance for the continued registration and verification within the System for Award 
Management (SAM).  

• Complete bi-annual Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) reports in the TrAMS system.  

• Maintain and provide login and passwords for all FTA related systems.  

• Coordinate with FTA Region VI and the District to change user managers and authorized officials 
to be consistent with interim and new staff at the District.  

• Complete annual National Transit Database (NTD) system reports.  

• Assist in grant disbursements.  

• Provide information to the auditor if required for Single Audit purposes.  

Deliverables: Monthly progress reports and ongoing grant management compliance.  
Excluded services: Construction administration (pay application review/approval, Davis-Bacon, Buy 
America, other construction phase compliance services, etc.) are not included in this task and will be 
requested via a future task order.  

Page 155

DRAFT



TBPE NO. F-19990                                                                                    THE GOODMAN CORPORATION 

2 

Task 2 – Triennial Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program Goal Setting 

TGC will update the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) required Midtown Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise (DBE) program based on 49 CFR Part 26 and all applicable rule changes. This includes updates 

to the DBE goal setting process using anticipated future federal procurements as a metric for the goal 

setting process. TGC will complete the required DBE consultation process in the form of a webinar and 

coordinate with Midtown Redevelopment Authority and Management District staff on submitting the 

completed documentation to FTA for approval, updating information within the TrAMS grantmaking 

system, and revising information on the Midtown website as necessary.  

Deliverables: Updated, submitted, and FTA approved DBE goal for use from CY2022 - 2025 

Task 3 – Project Planning and Preliminary Engineering  

The grant requirements are such that funds must be used on eligible pedestrian-transit-bicycle 

improvements within ½ mile of the Wheeler Street corridor within Midtown. Using these criteria and 

focusing on three distinct corridors/options (Cleburne, Main, and bicycle access to and from Hermann 

Park), TGC will define projects which can utilize the FTA grant dollars. For each proposed project TGC will 

develop: 

- Project limits 

- Project scope description 

- Project cross-section 

- Project overall schematic 

- Project cost estimates 

TGC will endeavor to identify improvements which enhance access, multimodal safety, transit access, and 

economic development. TGC will also provide a technical justification for any improvements proposed to 

include a traffic analysis. A drainage analysis will be needed in the future but will not be completed at this 

time.   

TGC will coordinate the information with Midtown staff for review and approval. TGC will also coordinate 

with the ongoing Strategic/Master Plan Update efforts underway. The outputs from this effort will enable 

submission of a DCR intake form as a next step.  

Deliverables: Project concepts to include limits, scope, section, schematic, and costs.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 156

DRAFT



TBPE NO. F-19990                                                                                    THE GOODMAN CORPORATION 

3 

 

Project Budget 
Progress payments will be made based on the percentage of completion of each below. Monthly invoices, 

including progress reports, will be provided commensurate with the percentage of the project completed 

each month. The costs within this scope are inclusive of all direct and indirect costs (travel, overhead, 

printing, etc.)  

 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

TASK DESCRIPTION COST 

1 
Wheeler Corridor FTA Compliance and Grants 

Management Support 
$30,471 

2 
Triennial Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

Program Goal Setting 
$23,500 

3 Project Planning and Preliminary Engineering $47,500 

 Total $101,471 

 

 

Page 157

DRAFT


	Mt_TIRZ Agenda 06_30_2022 -8258264-v6.pdf
	1. Call to Order and Introduction of Guests.
	2. Public Comment.
	3. Consent Agenda for the Midtown Reinvestment Zone:
	a.   Minutes for May 26 and June 2, 2022.

	4. Consent Agenda for the Authority:
	a. Minutes for May 26 and June 2, 2022;
	b. Monthly financial reports for May 2022;

	5. Grant Agreement between Houston Endowment Inc. and the Midtown Redevelopment Authority for the Midtown Cultural Art & Entertainment District to receive Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) for support to build capacity and codevelop the...
	6. Midtown Affordable Housing Program
	8. Review of certain Administrative and Personnel Procedures, Policies and Budgets.
	9. With respect to the foregoing agenda items, the Authority may conduct an executive session with regards to the following, as appropriate and necessary:
	a.   Consultation with attorney (Section 551.071, Texas Government Code);

	b. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property (Section 551.072, Texas           Government Code);
	c.   Personnel matters (Section 551.074, Texas Government Code);
	d.   Security personnel or devices (Section 551.076, Texas Government Code); and
	e.   Economic development negotiations (Sections 551.087, Texas Government Code).

	Upon entering into the executive session, the presiding officer shall announce which agenda items will be discussed.
	10. Adjourn.

	Zone_Minutes_-_05_26_22.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS
	May 26, 2022
	In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, David Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, Sally Adame, Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and ...
	CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE MIDTOWN ZONE.
	ADJOURNMENT


	Zone_Minutes_-_06_02_22.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS
	June 2, 2022
	In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, David Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, Sally Adame, Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and ...
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	No public comments were given at this meeting.
	Nomination and Election of Secretary and Assistant Secretary of the Board.
	Chairman Odom asked for nominations for Secretary and Assistant Secretary from the Board.
	Director Foster made a motion to nominate and elect Director Fenz as Secretary.  The motion was seconded by Director Goren and carried by unanimous vote.
	Director Goren made a motion to nominate and elect Director Foster as Assistant Secretary.  The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.
	The Board did not enter a closed executive session.

	MRA Minutes 05.26.2022-8258273-v2 with PF Comments - Clean.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	May 26, 2022
	In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, David Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, Sally Adame, Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and ...
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	No public comments were given at this meeting.
	CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE AUTHORITY:
	MINUTES FOR MARCH 31, 2022;
	MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR MARCH & APRIL, 2022;
	Executive Director Matt Thibodeaux presented the consent agenda. Director Foster made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.

	ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE MANUAL AND EMPLOYEE POLICY MANUAL.
	Barron F. Wallace of Bracewell LLP presented the Administrative Procedure Manual and the Employee Policy Manual.  He noted the revisions were changes to the harassment and vacation policies.  Director Foster made a motion to approve the Administrative...
	INVESTMENT POLICY WITH DEALER/BROKER LIST.
	Mr. Wallace presented the Investment Policy with Dealer/Broker List, noting that the only revision to the policy was in the Dealer/Broker List, which was updated with current dealer/brokers. Director Foster made a motion to approve the Investment Poli...
	FINANCIAL AND AGREED UPON PROCEDURES ENGAGEMENT LETTER.
	Kandi Schramm, Administrative Manager, presented the Engagement Letters for the 2022 and 2023 Financial and Agreed Upon Procedures Audits. She noted that the Engagement Letters showed a minimal increase over the previous years due to the increase of t...
	FY21 AGREED UPON PROCEDURES AUDIT.
	Jessica Ortiz of Carr, Riggs and Ingram presented the FY21 Agreed Upon Procedures Audit.  Ms. Ortiz reported their engagement to perform the FY21 Agreed Upon Procedures Audit in accordance with the attestation standards established by the American Ins...
	MIDTOWN AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM
	The Board did not enter into a closed executive session.

	MRA Minutes 06.02.2022.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	June 2, 2022
	In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, David Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, Sally Adame, Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and ...
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	No public comments were given at this meeting.
	Nomination and Election of Secretary and Assistant Secretary of the Board.
	Chairman Odom asked for nominations for Secretary and Assistant Secretary from the Board.
	Director Foster made a motion to nominate and elect Director Fenz as Secretary.  The motion was seconded by Director Goren and carried by unanimous vote.
	Director Goren made a motion to nominate and elect Director Foster as Assistant Secretary.  The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.
	The Board did not enter a closed executive session.

	Copy of MRA JUNE 2022  FINANCIALS (version 2).pdf
	MRA MAY 2022 P&L
	MRA MAY 2022 BAL SHEET
	MRA JUN 30 TRIAL BAL
	MRA JUNE FY22 Chks
	MRA JUNE FY22 AFF HOU Chks
	MRA JUNE 22  FY22 BONDS

	Front 90 Plaza_Project Manual REBID_Contractor Agreement_JerdonBidForm_062822.pdf
	Front 90 Plaza_Project Manual REBID_Contractor Agreement.pdf
	A - 2022-03-22 INVITATION TO BID
	B - 2021-11-12 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
	C - 2022-03-25 MIDTOWN PARK SUMMARY OF WORK
	D1 - 2022-03-25 BID FORM
	D2 - 2022-03-15 Midtown Park Unit Prices
	E - 2021-11-12 MIDTOWN PARK BID QUESTIONNAIRE
	F - 2021-11-16 MIDTOWN Agreement
	FA - 2021-11-16 EX A - GOOD FAITH EFFORTS
	FB - 2021-11-16 EX B - DESCRIPTION OF DWGS
	G - 2021-11-16 GENERAL CONDITIONS
	H - 2021-11-16 SPECIAL CONDITIONS
	I1 - 2021-11-12 MIDTOWN PARK SPEC TOC
	I2 - 2021-11-16 Midtown Specs
	01145 Use of Premises
	01271 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT - MRA
	01292 Schedule of Values
	01351 Environmental Safety and Worker Protection
	01410 TPDES Requirements
	01422 Reference Standards
	01450 Contractor's QC
	01452 Inspection Services
	01454 Testing Laboratory Services
	01502 Mobilization
	01504 Temporary Facilities and Controls
	01570 SW3P
	01575 Stabilized Construction Access
	01576 Waste Material Disposal
	01578 Control of Ground and Surface Water
	01610 Basic Product Requirements
	01630 Product Substitution Procedures
	01725 Field Surveying
	01731 Cutting and Patching
	01732 Procedure for Water Valve Assistance
	01740 Site Restoration
	01755 Starting Systems
	01770 Closeout Procedures
	030105 Concrete Repair Materials
	321316 FL - DECORATIVE CONCRETE PAVING_Front 90
	321373 FL - CONCRETE PAVING JOINT SEALANTS_Front 90
	329113 FL - SOIL PREPARATION_Front 90
	329200 FL - TURF AND GRASSES_Front 90
	329300 FL - PLANTS_Front 90

	Midtown Park - Addendum 1.pdf
	2022-04-08 MIDTOWN PARK BID ADD 1
	2022-04-05 MIDTOWN PARK PREBID MTG MINS
	015639~1



	OJB_20220627Caroline Wheeler Deck Park Attachment B Work Order.pdf
	DM-#8146289-v2-OJB_Midtown_RA_Professional_Services_Agreement (002).pdf
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	Article 1   SCOPE OF SERVICES; subconsultants
	1.1. Consultant agrees to perform engineering, design, project management, program management, technical, consulting and such other services (the “Services”) as are requested from time to time by Midtown, which Services shall be set forth more particu...
	1.2. Work Orders shall contain the schedule, price and payment terms applicable to the Services within the scope of such Work Orders.  Work Orders will refer to and be governed by and subject to the terms, conditions and other provisions of this Agree...
	1.3. Terms, conditions or other provisions contained in any Work Order that conflict with any terms, conditions or other provisions of this Agreement will have no effect and will be deemed stricken and severed from such Work Orders, and the balance of...
	1.4. Nothing herein obligates Midtown to issue, or Consultant to accept, any Work Orders.  Further, the Parties agree that nothing in this Agreement prohibits the Parties from entering into separate or supplemental agreements in addition to this Agree...
	1.5. The Parties agree that in this Agreement, any reference to “Subconsultant” or “Subconsultants” of the Consultant shall include any contractor, subcontractor, subconsultant or third party under the direction and control of the Consultant but shall...

	Article 2   TERM OF AGREEMENT
	2.1. This Agreement shall be effective for a term of one (1) year from the date of the last signature set forth below and shall be automatically renewed without action by either Party for subsequent terms of one (1) year unless terminated earlier in w...
	2.2. Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 2.1, this Agreement shall remain in effect for Work Orders issued and accepted during the term of this Agreement until such time as the Services under the Work Orders have been...

	Article 3   COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT
	3.1. Midtown agrees to pay Consultant, and Consultant agrees to accept, as full and complete compensation for Services properly performed by Consultant hereunder, the rates and charges agreed upon for a specific Work Order.  Attachment A shall be used...
	3.2. On or as soon as practicable after the first day of each calendar month, Consultant shall submit an invoice to Midtown, together with appropriate releases and lien waivers in forms acceptable to Midtown, covering all Services performed by Consult...
	3.3. Midtown may withhold and/or offset all or any part of payment requested in any invoice to protect Midtown from loss or expected loss because of:
	(a) Services that are defective or not in compliance with this Agreement or the applicable Work Order or any failure of Consultant to perform Services in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or the applicable Work Order;
	(b) third party suits, stop notices, claims or liens for which Consultant, or its Subconsultants, is responsible pursuant to this Agreement, including pursuant to any indemnification obligation hereunder, asserted or filed against any Indemnitee (as d...
	(c) uninsured damage to any Indemnitee which results from Consultant’s failure to obtain or maintain the insurance required by this Agreement or from any action or inaction by Consultant or any of its Subconsultants which excuses any insurer from liab...
	(d) any failure of Consultant to pay any of its Subconsultants;
	(e) failure of Consultant to submit proper invoices with all required attachments and supporting documentation;
	(f) evidence that the Services cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the fee due Consultant under the applicable Work Order;
	(g) evidence that the Services will not be completed within the time set forth in the applicable Work Order or a schedule agreed upon for such Services, and that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover damages for the anticipated delay; or
	(h) any other failure of Consultant to comply with this Agreement.

	3.4. Consultant agrees to pay in full as soon as reasonably practicable, but in no event later than thirty (30) days following payment from Midtown for a specific Work Order, all Subconsultants in connection with Services that are owed payment by Cons...
	3.5. If Midtown is entitled to reimbursement or payment from Consultant under or pursuant to this Agreement, such payment shall be made promptly upon demand by Midtown.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, if Consulta...
	3.6. Consultant shall pay promptly all indebtedness for labor, materials and equipment used in performance of the Services under a Work Order.  Consultant shall make, pay and discharge all valid taxes, lienable claims, charges, payments to all vendors...

	Article 4   ACCESS TO SITES; PERMITS; AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING
	4.1. Consultant shall have access to all sites to the extent necessary for the performance of Services under this Agreement.
	4.2. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Work Order(s), Consultant will assist Midtown in securing all necessary approvals, permits, licenses, easements and consents necessary for the performance of Services.
	4.3. Consultant understands that appropriations for Services pursuant to Work Orders under this Agreement will sometimes be made in stages by Midtown.  Consultant also understands that such Services will be performed and expenses incurred by Consultan...

	Article 5   STANDARD OF CARE; COORDINATION OF SERVICES; SAFETY;  COST ESTIMATES; FURNISHING OF INFORMATION TO PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR; REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY CITY OF HOUSTON
	5.1. Consultant shall supervise and direct the Services and those of Subconsultants and shall perform the Services free from defects and consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by landscape architects practicing in the same...
	5.2. Consistent with its Standard of Care, Consultant will keep Midtown apprised of the status of Services, will coordinate its activities with Midtown, and accommodate other activities of Midtown at the sites to which the Services relate.
	5.3. Consultant confirms and agrees that Midtown has and shall retain all rights, title, and interest in and to any information, drawings, maps, field notes, statistics, computation, or other data provided by or on behalf of Midtown, including, withou...
	5.4. Consultant shall be responsible for its own activities at sites including the safety of its employees, and that of its Subconsultants but shall not assume control of or responsibility for the overall site safety.  Construction contractors of Midt...
	5.5. During performance of the Services, Consultant shall not, directly or indirectly, become involved in any relationship that presents a conflict of interest based upon information available to Consultant, or upon discovery thereof, allow such a con...
	5.6. With respect to providing Services hereunder, Consultant shall (a) promptly disclose to Midtown any facts which might involve any reasonable possibility of a conflict of interest during the term of this Agreement; (b) complete any forms required ...
	5.7. If requested by Midtown, Consultant shall furnish to the director of Houston Public Works (the “Public Works Director”) copies of estimates and progress reports related to construction and necessary for the performance of Services as such estimat...
	5.8. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that projects of Midtown may be subject to review and approval by the City of Houston.  Accordingly, as and when requested by Midtown, Consultant shall submit information and cooperate with the City of Houston t...

	Article 6   AUDIT RIGHTS
	Article 7   OWNERSHIP OF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE AND TECHNOLOGY
	7.1. All drawings, specifications, other documents prepared or furnished by the Consultant or its Subconsultants pursuant to this Agreement, including those in electronic form, and copies thereof furnished by any of them and the architectural works (a...
	7.2. Consultant agrees that all information provided by Midtown in connection with Services (“Confidential Information”) shall be considered and kept confidential, and shall not be reproduced, transmitted, used or disclosed by Consultant without the p...
	(i) was at the time of receipt by Consultant otherwise known by Consultant by proper means;
	(ii) has been published or is otherwise within the public domain, or is generally known to the public at the time of its disclosure to Consultant;
	(iii) subsequently is developed independently by Consultant by proper means, by a person having nothing to do with the performance of this Agreement and who did not learn about any such information as a result of Consultant being a Party to this Agree...
	(iv) becomes known or available to Consultant from a source other than Midtown that acquired it through proper means, which source is not under an obligation of confidentiality to Midtown, and without breach of this Agreement by Consultant or any othe...
	(v) enters the public domain without breach of this Agreement by or other impropriety of Consultant;
	(vi) becomes available to Consultant by inspection or analysis of products available in the market;
	(vii) is disclosed with the prior written approval of Midtown;
	(viii) was exchanged between Midtown and Consultant and ten years have subsequently elapsed since such exchange; or
	(ix) is required to be disclosed pursuant to applicable law; provided that Consultant promptly notifies Midtown in writing of any proposed disclosure of Confidential Information pursuant to this subsection sufficiently in advance of such proposed disc...

	7.3. Consultant shall not be liable for the inadvertent or accidental disclosure of Confidential Information, if such disclosure occurs despite the exercise of at least the same degree of care as Consultant normally takes to preserve and safeguard its...
	7.4. Consultant will advise Midtown of any patents, trademarks, copyrights or proprietary rights and any royalties, licenses, or other charges which Consultant knows or should know in the exercise of its Standard of Care that impacts any design provid...

	Article 8   INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP
	Article 9   CORRECTION OF SERVICES
	(a) The cost of correcting and replacing any affected design documents, including reproducible drawings;
	(b) The replacement cost of the contractor’s work which is installed pursuant to and in accordance with documents for which Consultant is responsible under this Agreement or applicable Work Order containing errors or omissions in contravention of the ...
	(c) The additional costs of consultants to Midtown, if any, arising out of such defective Services.

	Article 10   INDEMNIFICATION BY CONSULTANT
	Article 11   LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
	11.1. Except for Consultant’s obligations pursuant to Article 10, neither Party hereto, nor its affiliates, its contractors, subcontractors, subconsultants, or vendors of any tier, shall be liable to the other Party or its affiliates for any loss of p...
	(i) the other’s gross negligence, willful or intentional misconduct, or fraud or misrepresentation;
	(ii) damages specifically contemplated in this Agreement; or
	(iii) damages recoverable from any insurance procured by the other.

	11.2. For purposes of this Article, an “affiliate” of a Party includes any parent, subsidiary or affiliated corporation, partnership or other legal entity, and its and their officers, agents, employees and insurers.

	Article 12   INSURANCE
	Article 13   CHANGES; TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE; TERMINATION FOR CAUSE; UNFORESEEN SITE CONDITIONS
	13.1. Midtown may, at any time and from time to time, make written changes to Work Orders in the form of modifications, supplements, additions, or omissions.  In the event Consultant believes that such modifications, supplements, additions, or omissio...
	13.2. Midtown may for convenience terminate this Agreement, any Work Order issued under this Agreement, or Consultant’s right to perform Services under this Agreement or any Work Order, in whole or in part, at any time by giving thirty (30) days’ writ...
	(i) stop work on the date and to the extent specified in such notice, and
	(ii) take such further action regarding termination of the Services as Midtown may reasonably direct.

	13.3. This Agreement or any Work Order may be suspended by Midtown, in whole or in part, upon notice to Consultant, specifying which portion of the Services are to be suspended and the effective date of such suspension.  Consultant shall continue to d...
	13.4. This Agreement or any Work Order may be terminated by either Party in the event that the other Party fails to perform in accordance with this Agreement or such Work Order and the breaching Party does not cure such failure within ten (10) days af...
	13.5. The payments due Consultant for termination and suspension as set forth in this Article 13 shall be Midtown’s only obligation and liability to Consultant by reason of such termination or suspension.  Consultant shall not be entitled to any addit...

	Article 14   ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING
	14.1. Consultant shall not assign or transfer (by operation of law or otherwise) any right or interest in this Agreement or any Work Order without Midtown’s prior written consent. For purposes of this Article 14, a merger is considered a transfer.  An...
	14.2. The Parties respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, permitted assigns and legal representatives to the other Party hereto and to partners, successors, permitted assigns and legal representatives of such other Party in respect o...
	14.3. Consultant shall not utilize any Subconsultant without prior written approval by Midtown.  The qualifications of Consultant’s Subconsultants shall be subject to Midtown’s review and approval.  All agreements between the Consultant and its Subcon...
	14.4. It is Midtown’s policy to ensure that M/WBEs have full opportunity to compete for and participate in Midtown contracts.  Consultant will be required to comply with the City of Houston’s M/WBE Program as set forth in Chapter 15, Article V of the ...

	Article 15   CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE/CONSULTANT TEAM
	15.1. Consultant shall designate an individual to serve as its representative and provide Midtown with written notice of such individual prior to performing any Services.  Any consent, approval, decision or determination hereunder by such representati...
	15.2. Consultant is obligated to employ the personnel and Subconsultants for performance of the Services as originally proposed.  Requests for replacements of the original personnel or subconsultants shall be submitted in writing to Midtown.  Changes ...

	Article 16   SEVERABILITY AND REFORMATION
	Article 17   CONSTRUCTION
	Article 18   ENTIRE AGREEMENT
	Article 19
	no third party beneficiary
	There are no third party beneficiaries of this Agreement and no third party may rely upon any obligation herein or upon the findings of any report produced hereby.  Further, this Agreement does not create or confer any legal claim or cause of action i...

	Article 20   GOVERNING LAW
	Article 21   COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS
	21.1. Consultant hereby certifies that Consultant is not delinquent in a tax owed the State of Texas under Chapter 171, Texas Tax Code.
	21.2. To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a written verification statement is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 19 in the 87th Texas Legislative Session, “SB 19”), Texas Government...
	(i) do not have a practice, policy, guidance or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and
	(ii) will not discriminate during the term of this Agreement against a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

	21.3. To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a written verification statement is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 13 in the 87th Texas Legislative Session), Texas Government Code, as...
	21.4. For purposes of compliance with Section 2271.002, Texas Government Code, as amended, Consultant hereby verifies that it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel through the term of this Agreement.  For purposes of this verification, “...
	21.5. For purposes of compliance with Section 2252.152, Texas Government Code, as amended, Consultant hereby represents and warrants that, at the time of this Agreement, neither Consultant nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, pa...
	21.6. Consultant will provide a completed and notarized Form 1295 generated by the Texas Ethics Commission’s electronic filing application in accordance with the provisions of Section 2252.908, Texas Government Code, as amended, and the rules promulga...

	Article 22   DISPUTE RESOLUTION; venue; jurisdiction
	22.1. In the event of any claim, dispute or controversy arising out of or relating to the implementation of or performance of this Agreement or any Work Order (whether such claim, dispute or controversy is allegedly extra-contractual in nature, whethe...
	22.2. Subject to Consultant’s obligation to comply with the requirements of the foregoing Section 22.1, for purposes of all legal or equitable proceedings arising out of, relating to or connected with this Agreement or any Work Order, Consultant hereb...
	22.3. If Consultant brings any claim against Midtown and Consultant does not prevail with respect thereto, Consultant shall be liable for all reasonable and necessary attorneys’ fees incurred by Midtown as a result thereof.

	Article 23   RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
	23.1. Duties and obligations imposed by this Agreement and the Work Order and rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law, exce...
	23.2. Failure of either Party to insist on the strict performance of any of the requirements herein or to exercise any rights or remedies accruing hereunder upon default or failure of performance shall not be considered a waiver of the right to insist...
	23.3. Any acceptance or approval by Midtown shall not constitute nor be deemed to be a release of responsibility or liability of Consultant or its Subconsultants for the accuracy, competency and completeness of any Services, nor shall acceptance or ap...

	Article 24   NOTICE
	Article 25   COUNTERPARTS
	[Signature page follows]
	ATTACHMENT B  Form of Work Order  WORK ORDER NO. ______________
	[End of Attachment B]
	ATTACHMENT C  Federal Transit Administration Required Clauses and Related Provisions
	RESPONDENT/CONTRACTOR PRE-AWARD CERTIFICATIONS
	LOBBYING CERTIFICATION FORM  To be completed by the prime contractor and all subcontractors.
	SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION FORM  CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS  PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
	To be completed by the prime contractor and all subcontractors.
	This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 13 C.F.R. Part 145. The regulations were published as Part VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal Register (pages 19160-19211).  (BEFORE COMPLETIN...
	INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
	RESPONDENT/CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION
	ETHNIC CODES
	GENDER CODES
	DBE SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION
	ATTACH COPY OF SUBCONTRACTOR’S TEXAS UNIFIED CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CERTIFICATE
	CONTRACTOR PAYMENT REPORT FORM
	This form is to be included with each pay application until final payment of the Contract has been made.  This form has been included for reference only.
	[End of Attachment C]
	ATTACHMENT D
	Insurance
	[End of Attachment D]

	ATTACHMENT A - MDRA.pdf
	ATTACHMENT A
	FOR SERVICES ON TIME AND MATERIALS BASIS – 2021
	Hourly Rate  Hourly Rate
	Staff Category              (Regular Time)              (Overtime)
	Architectural Assistant    $100.00         N/A
	Designer      $130.00         N/A
	Project Designer     $150.00         N/A
	Associate / BIM Manager    $165.00         N/A
	Sr. Associate / Studio Leader    $185.00         N/A
	Associate Director     $195.00         N/A
	Director      $200.00                    N/A
	Principal      $230.00         N/A
	Partner       $250.00         N/A
	President      $325.00         N/A
	FOR SERVICES ON TIME AND MATERIALS BASIS – 2022
	Hourly Rate  Hourly Rate
	Staff Category              (Regular Time)              (Overtime)
	Architectural Assistant    $110.00         N/A
	Designer      $140.00         N/A
	Project Designer     $160.00         N/A
	Associate / BIM Manager    $175.00         N/A
	Sr. Associate / Studio Leader    $195.00         N/A
	Associate Director     $210.00         N/A
	Director      $220.00                    N/A
	Principal      $240.00         N/A
	Partner       $265.00         N/A
	President      $350.00         N/A
	[End of Attachment A]

	OJB_20220621 v1 PROP - Caroline Wheeler Deck Park_ExB_projectlimits.pdf
	CLIENT
	LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
	MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	THE OFFICE OF JAMES BURNETT, INC.dba OJB LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
	Name
	Name
	Title
	Title
	Date
	Date
	EXHIBIT A
	The Concept Design will include:

	Meetings / 
	Fee
	Duration
	Phase
	Web Conferences
	Total
	EXHIBIT B
	EXHIBIT C


	MRA Minutes 05.26.2022-8258273-v2 with PF Comments - Clean.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	May 26, 2022
	In attendance were Midtown Staff members: Vernon Williams, Kandi Schramm, Todd Edwards, David Thomas, Theresa Gilmore, Marlon Marshall, Jaime Giraldo, Willie Larry, Amaris Salinas, Sally Adame, Jalisa Hurst, Steve Smith, Chrystal Robertson-Davis, and ...
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	No public comments were given at this meeting.
	CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE AUTHORITY:
	MINUTES FOR MARCH 31, 2022;
	MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR MARCH & APRIL, 2022;
	Executive Director Matt Thibodeaux presented the consent agenda. Director Foster made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. The motion was seconded by Director Murphy and carried by unanimous vote.

	ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE MANUAL AND EMPLOYEE POLICY MANUAL.
	Barron F. Wallace of Bracewell LLP presented the Administrative Procedure Manual and the Employee Policy Manual.  He noted the revisions were changes to the harassment and vacation policies.  Director Foster made a motion to approve the Administrative...
	INVESTMENT POLICY WITH DEALER/BROKER LIST.
	Mr. Wallace presented the Investment Policy with Dealer/Broker List, noting that the only revision to the policy was in the Dealer/Broker List, which was updated with current dealer/brokers. Director Foster made a motion to approve the Investment Poli...
	FINANCIAL AND AGREED UPON PROCEDURES ENGAGEMENT LETTER.
	Kandi Schramm, Administrative Manager, presented the Engagement Letters for the 2022 and 2023 Financial and Agreed Upon Procedures Audits. She noted that the Engagement Letters showed a minimal increase over the previous years due to the increase of t...
	FY21 AGREED UPON PROCEDURES AUDIT.
	Jessica Ortiz of Carr, Riggs and Ingram presented the FY21 Agreed Upon Procedures Audit.  Ms. Ortiz reported their engagement to perform the FY21 Agreed Upon Procedures Audit in accordance with the attestation standards established by the American Ins...
	MIDTOWN AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM
	The Board did not enter into a closed executive session.




